# BAND IN A BOX®

# **Version 2023 for Windows**<sup>®</sup>



# **New Features Guide**

© Copyright PG Music Inc. 1989-2023. All rights reserved.

# PG Music Inc. License Agreements

# CAREFULLY READ THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS BEFORE COMPLETING THE INSTALLATION OF THIS SOFTWARE. USAGE OF THE SOFTWARE INDICATES YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

#### LICENSE

- A. The program may only be used on a single machine.
- B. You may transfer the program and license to another party if the other party agrees to accept the terms of this Agreement. If you transfer the program, you must either transfer all copies, whether in printed or machine readable form, to the same party, or, destroy all copies not transferred. This includes all modifications and/or portions of the program merged into other programs.
- C. You may receive the program in more than one media. Regardless of the type or size of media you receive, you may install or use the media on a single machine.
- D. The program (including any images, "applets," photographs, animations, video, audio, music, and text incorporated into the program) is owned by PG Music Inc. or its suppliers, and is protected by international copyright laws and international treaty provisions.

You may not use, copy, or transfer the program, or any copy, modification or merged portion of the program, in whole or in part, except as expressly provided for in this license. If you transfer possession of any copy, modification or merged portion of the program to another party, your license is automatically terminated.

Some programs such as Band-in-a-Box® have a "server" function (including BandInABoxServer.exe program) to connect to a "Client" (mobile client version of Band-in-a-Box® on iPhone or other mobile device). You are only licensed to connect the Server function (including BandInABoxServer.exe program) to Clients where you own or have properly licensed both the Client and Server software that is being connected, not to clients or Server software owned/licensed by third parties. The preceding also applies to any other PG Music products (RealBand etc.) with a similar type of connection between a Server program and a Client.

#### LIMITATION OF REMEDIES

PG Music Inc.'s entire liability and your exclusive remedy shall be:

- A. The replacement of any media not meeting PG Music Inc.'s "Limited Warranty," which are returned to PG Music Inc., or an authorized PG Music Inc. dealer, with a copy of your receipt.
- B. If PG Music Inc. or the authorized dealer is unable to deliver replacement media which is free of defects in materials or workmanship, you may terminate this agreement, and your money will be refunded.

In no event will PG Music Inc. be liable to you for any damages, including but not limited to lost profits, lost savings, or other incidental or consequential damages arising out of the use or the inability to use such program, even if PG Music Inc. or an authorized PG Music Inc. dealer has been advised of the possibility of such damages, or for any claim by any other party.

#### NOTICE TO CUSTOMERS

The following paragraph applies to the video join tool (vjt.exe, vjt\_ffmpeg.exe, and other files in the \Data\VJT folder) that may be included with this installation. Notice Required for the License Granted under Articles 2.1 and 2.6 and for Sales to Codec Licensee Customer(s). As a condition of the license granted under Article 2.6 and the license granted to a Codec Licensee to make Sales to Codec Licensee Customer(s), Licensee agrees to provide any party that receives an AVC Product from Licensee exercising such license rights the following notice: THIS PRODUCT IS LICENSED UNDER THE AVC PATENT PORTFOLIO LICENSE. SUCH LICENSE EXTENDS TO THIS PRODUCT ONLY AND ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF OTHER NOTICES WHICH MAY BE INCLUDED HEREIN. THE LICENSE DOES NOT EXTEND TO ANY OTHER PRODUCT REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH PRODUCT IS INCLUDED WITH THIS LICENSED PRODUCT IN A SINGLE ARTICLE. THIS PRODUCT IS LICENSED UNDER THE AVC PATENT PORTFOLIO LICENSE FOR THE PERSONAL USE OF A CONSUMER OR OTHER USES IN WHICH IT DOES NOT RECEIVE REMUNERATION TO (i) ENCODE VIDEO IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AVC STANDARD ("AVC VIDEO") AND/OR (ii) DECODE AVC VIDEO THAT WAS ENCODED BY A CONSUMER ENGAGED IN A PERSONAL ACTIVITY AND/OR WAS OBTAINED FROM A VIDEO PROVIDER LICENSED TO PROVIDE AVC VIDEO. NO LICENSE IS GRANTED OR SHALL BE IMPLIED FOR ANY OTHER USE. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MAY BE OBTAINED FROM MPEG LA, L.L.C. SEE HTTPS://WWW.MPEGLA.COM.

The following paragraph applies to the video join tool (vjt.exe, vjt\_ffmpeg.exe and other files in the \Data\VJT folder) that may be included with this installation. Video Join Tool "VJT" is hereby licensed to the End-user as a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable license to run one copy of the object code version of the x264 Software on one machine, device, or instrument solely as integrated into the Integrated Product. If the Integrated Product is licensed for concurrent or network use, the End-User may not allow more than the maximum number of authorized users to access and use the x264 Software concurrently. The End-User may only make copies of the Integrated Product only for backup and archival purposes. The End-User is Prohibited from: (a) copying the Integrated Product and/or x264 Software onto any public or distributed network; (b) using the x264 Software to operate in or as a time-sharing, outsourcing, service bureau, application service provider or managed service provider environment; (c) using the x264 Software as a standalone application or any other purpose than as integrated into the Integrated Product; (d) changing any proprietary rights notices which appear in the x264 Software or the Integrated Product; or (e) modifying the x264 Software. The End-User may transfer the license granted by the EULA only if (a) End-User complies with any transfer terms imposed by Licensee and delivers all copies of the Integrated Product to the transferee along with the EULA; (b) transferee accepts the terms and conditions of the EULA as a condition to any transfer; and (c) the End-User's license to use the Integrated Product terminates upon transfer. The End-User must comply with all applicable export laws and regulations. If the EULA is ever terminated, the End-User is required to immediately destroy all copies of the Integrated Product and x264 Software upon termination of the EULA.

This program may include video join tool (vjt.exe, vjt\_ffmpeg.exe and other files in the \Data\VJT folder). The program uses FFmpeg under the LGPLv2.1, which can be seen here: https://www.gnu.org/licenses/old-licenses/lgpl-2.1.html. FFmpeg software is not owned by PG Music and information on ownership can be found at www.ffmpeg.org.

#### TRADEMARKS

Band-in-a-Box®, Band-in-a-Box for Bozos®, CloudTracks®, GuitarStar®, JazzU®, PG Music®, PowerTracks Pro®, RealBand®, RealDrums®, RealStyles®, and RealTracks® are either the trademarks or registered trademarks of PG Music Inc. in the United States, Canada, and other countries. Microsoft® and Windows® are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Apple®, the Apple logo, iPad™, iPhone®, iPod touch®, Leopard®, Macintosh®, Mac®, Panther®, Power Mac®, QuickTime®, Snow Leopard®, Tiger®, and TrueType® are trademarks of Apple Computer, Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries. IBM® is the registered trademark of International Business Machines Corporation. Roland® and "Roland" Logo, DIROL® and "EDIROL" Logo, GS® and "GS" Logo, are registered trademarks and "MIDI2" Logo, EDIROL Virtual Sound Canvas Multi Pack, VSC-MP1™ are trademarks of Roland Corporation. Steinberg and ASIO are trademarks of Steinberg Media Technologies AG. VST is a registered trademark of Steinberg Media Technologies AG. Fretlight® is a registered trademark of Optek Music Systems, Inc. Other brands and their products are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders and should be noted as such.

#### PATENTS

Band-in-a-Box® is protected under US Patents 5990407, 8097801, 8581085, and 8680387.

Band-in-a-Box®, RealBand®, and other PG Music software uses "élastique Pro V3 by zplane.development" as a time and pitch stretching engine, "élastique Tune V1 by zplane.development" as a monophonic pitch editing engine, and "Harmony addon V1 by zplane.development" for the élastique Tune Engine.

Some audio conversions use libsndfile. Libsndfile is licensed under LPGL. BeStPlain chord font - © 2016 by Bernhard Steuber CDS Design GmbH http://cdsdesign.de. RealScore and BigBand chord fonts - Copyright © 2014 by Nor Eddine Bahha https://norfonts.ma.

Printed in Canada

# **Table of Contents**

PG Music Inc. License Agreements	
Table of Contents	4
Chapter 1: Introduction	5
Band-in-a-Box 2023 for Windows® is here!	5
Band-in-a-Box 2023 Features and Additions	
Additional New Content Available for Band-in-a-Box 2023	5
Chapter 2: Summary of New Features	
Chapter 3: QuickStart Tutorial	
Partial Track Re-Generation	
Undo Available for Song or Track Generation	
Playable RealDrums	
Playable MIDI Tracks and MIDI SuperTracks	
Master Volume Automation	
RealTracks Stems	
RealDrums Fills	
SynthMaster Player Synth Included	
EZ RealTracks/RealDrums Folder Locations Dialog	
"Different Riffs" Setting for Track Re-Generation	
Editing Functions for RealTracks/RealDrums Tracks	
Auto-Save Song	
Stereo VU Meters on the Mixer	
Audio Input Monitoring	
RealTracks Picker Enhancements	
RealDrums Picker Enhancements	
Copy Song to Text Enhancements	
SongPicker Enhancements	
Chord Track Added	
Fit-to-Note-Range MIDI Transpose Added	
Yellow Messages Enhancements	
Help for "Style Not Found"	
StylePicker Enhancements	
Generate Intros Using Song Chords	
More Track's Right-Click Menu Items	
Track Settings and Action Dialog Enhancements Summary Section in "What Add-ons do I have?" Dialog	
Pre-made "Showcase" Audio Demos for Playable RealTracks and RealDrums Playable Tracks Enhancement	
Chord display for Nashville Notation and Roman Numerals now shows minor keys as 1m	
Display Option of Red Lines in Bars on Chord Sheet	
Notation Enhancements	
Notation Printing Enhancements	
XML Enhancement	
New Hotkeys	
Miscellaneous	
Many Accessibility Enhancements	
Feature Browser	
PG Music Inc	

# **Chapter 1: Introduction**

# Congratulations on your purchase of Band-in-a-Box® 2023 for Windows®!

This documentation covers the new features in Band-in-a-Box 2023. The Help menu has a link to the full manual.

# Band-in-a-Box 2023 for Windows® is here!

We've been busy and added over 70 new features and an amazing collection of new content, including MIDI SuperTracks, Instrumental Studies, "Song with Vocals" Artist Performances, Xtra Styles PAK 14 & 15, Playable RealTracks Set 2, Playable RealDrums Set 1 & 2, new sets of "RealDrums Stems" and more!

There's more great news! Version 2023 UltraPAK, UltraPAK+, and Audiophile users get all **222 new RealTracks with 150+ RealStyles** and Pro users get 45 new RealTracks and **80 new RealStyles** with the **RealCombos Booster PAK 2**. That's more RealTracks and RealStyles for everyone!

We have **Bonus PAKs** with **60 RealTracks** (20 more than we've released in previous versions!) in addition to the **222 new RealTracks**, so in total an amazing **282 new RealTracks and RealDrums** are available! There are **404 new "Playable RealTracks" Hi-Q sounds**, which match many of our RealTracks, so you can easily switch from RealTracks parts to MIDI notes while maintaining the instrument sound! ALL Playable RealTracks and RealDrums now also have audio demos. The Bonus PAKs also include **2 new Artist Performance Sets**, containing over 50 original songs with vocal performances by a variety of talented singers! There are also **Instrumental Studies Sets** including **Rockin' Blues Soloing** and more **Classic Country Guitar Soloing**. There are also new **RealDrums Stems**, which allow you to access the individual wave files from each different mic used to record many of our most popular RealDrums! There are also over **30 new MIDI SuperTracks**, including styles designed to work with the **new SynthMaster Player plugin** included with Band-in-a-Box 2023!

In addition, there are over 100 new RealStyles that use the new RealTracks. These include new jazz, fusion and funk styles that feature legendary drummer Mike Clark! We have lots of requested blues styles, including new guitar and harmonica with Pat Bergeson, lap steel with Rob Ickes & Eddy Dunlap, and more blues with Nashville great Johnny Hiland. We've also expanded our Bossa piano soloing, with styles using both soloing and left-hand comping. There are also exciting new Funk & Soul Horn Section and requested Latin pop styles. In the "pop, rock, & world" category, we've added many requested "southern soul" drums, guitar, and bass. There are also requested Prog-Rock styles, as well as "80s" New Wave Guitars. There are new exciting Boogie & Gospel Piano with Nashville great Kevin McKendree. There are vocal Doo-Wop styles, as well as Modern Pop. There are also requested Metal styles featuring new drums, basses and guitar, and the guitars are all "12key," meaning Band-in-a-Box does not need to use any pitch shifting on the audio, making for a more consistent tone no matter what chords you enter. And we've also included requested World Styles, expanding our collection of Sitar, Tabla and Dholak. For country, americana and Celtic, we've greatly expanded our extremely popular "Producer" "Explosive" Country Guitar Styles with three sets of radio-friendly guitars from Nashville legend Brent Mason, designed to be layered into a polished "produced" sound. We've also added more indie-folk, singer songwriter styles, requested autoharp styles, and more contradance piano & guitar. The 2023 Bonus 49-PAK includes even 60 more RealTracks, including Nashville "Producer" Guitars, more Rock & Soul Organ, piano, requested bongo RealDrums, and a RealTracks first: Erhu! This requested instrument originated in China, and is similar to a violin. And there are new requested Reggaeton & K-Pop RealDrums, more fusion drums from Mike Clark, and more Soul Guitar & Horns!

# Band-in-a-Box 2023 Features and Additions

There are over 70 New Features in Band-in-a-Box 2023. This includes Many Major New Features. First, there are Partial Track Re-Generations, with an on-screen Regeneration Panel and an Always Different setting to get up to 40 variations on any RealTracks. Undo - Track Generation and Undo - Song Generation is added. You can now copy, cut, paste, delete, insert, and do other editing functions to the RealTracks/RealDrums tracks, while preserving the ability for the tracks to regenerate new material. Auto-Save Song prevents data loss. Playable Tracks are enhanced for Playable RealTracks (404 new Sforzando sounds, 700 total - all with Audio Demos), and now include Playable RealDrums, MIDI SuperTracks and MIDI tracks. There are now RealTracks Stems, separate isolated tracks available for multi-track RealTracks like Horns (e.g., Crooner, Blues), Vocals, and String Quartets. Master Track Volume Automation for fadeouts, crescendos etc. added. SynthMaster® Player synth included, with modern/techno sounds. Audio Input monitoring to hear your audio input (e.g., electric guitar with effects) through to Audio Out. Arpeggiator sounds available. EZ Selection of your RealTracks/RealDrums Folders. Help for "Style not Found" providing info and lists of substitutes. Generate Intros using Song Chords. RealDrums Fills control, Enhancements for StylePicker - Preview, Prototypes and Rebuild. And more!

# Additional New Content Available for Band-in-a-Box 2023

- 60 Bonus Unreleased RealTracks
- 34 MIDI SuperTracks
- 30 All-MIDI Styles
- 12 Instrumental Studies
- 50 Artist Performances
- 50+ RealDrums Stems

- 10 Playable RealDrums, with Audio Demos
- 400+ Additional Audio Demos for Playable RealTracks
- 700+ Audio Demos for All New and Existing Playable RealTracks
- SynthMaster Sounds and Styles, with Audio Demos
- RealCombos Booster PAK
- XPro Styles PAK 4
- Xtra Styles PAK 14
- Xtra Styles PAK 15

# 222 NEW RealTracks

Band-in-a-Box 2023 contains an amazing assortment of new RealTracks & RealDrums! These include new jazz, fusion and funk styles that feature legendary drummer Mike Clark! We have lots of requested blues styles, including new guitar and harmonica with Pat Bergeson, lap steel with Rob Ickes & Eddy Dunlap, and more blues with Nashville great Johnny Hiland. We've also expanded our Bossa piano soloing, with styles using both soloing and left-hand comping. There are also exciting new Funk & Soul Horn Section and requested Latin pop styles. In the "pop, rock, & world" category, we've added many requested "southern soul" drums, guitar, and bass. There are also requested Prog-Rock styles, as well as "80s" New Wave Guitars. There are new exciting Boogie & Gospel Piano with Nashville great Kevin McKendree. There are vocal Doo-Wop styles, as well as Modern Pop. There are also requested Metal styles featuring new drums, basses and guitar, and the guitars are all "12-key," meaning Band-in-a-Box does not need to use any pitch shifting on the audio, making for a more consistent tone no matter what chords you enter. And we've also included requested World Styles, expanding our collection of Sitar, Tabla And Dholak. For country, americana and Celtic, we've greatly expanded our extremely popular "Producer" "Explosive" Country Guitar Styles with three sets of radio-friendly guitars from Nashville legend Brent Mason, designed to be layered into a polished "produced" sound. We've also added more indie-folk, singer songwriter styles, requested autoharp styles, and more contradance piano & guitar. The 2023 Bonus 49-PAK includes even 60 more RealTracks, including Nashville "Producer" Guitars, more Rock & Soul Organ, piano, requested bongo RealDrums, and a RealTracks first: Erhu! This requested instrument originated in China, and is similar to a violin. And there are new requested Reggaeton & K-Pop RealDrums, more fusion drums from Mike Clark, and more Soul Guitar & Horns!

- 77 Jazz, Blues, Funk & Funk RealTracks (Sets 401-411): Our new Jazz, Blues, Funk, and Latin RealTracks include new drums with Mike Clark for Fusion, Funk, Swing, and more! We've got you covered with new funk, blues, 2-handed bossa piano soloing, organ soloing & comping with Charles Treadway, and gritty blues harmonica with Pat Bergeson that pairs well with the new gritty blues guitar with Johnny Hiland! There's also new RealDrums, electric guitar, and acoustic piano all playing in a Latin style by Miles Black, Mike Durham, and Wes Little, and more!
- 78 Pop, Rock & World RealTracks (Sets 412-422): This new collection covers a lot of requests we've received for styles like southern soul, prog rock, and 80s new wave, and we didn't stop there! We've added siter, tabla, dhoulak, Dave Roe's funky bass playing, doo-wop pop vocals, Kevin McKendree's piano playing, Pat Bergeson's gritty harmonica, 12-key guitar, and more!
- 67 Country, Americana & Celtic RealTracks (Sets 423-429): Our Country, Americana, and Celtic RealTracks boasts not one not two but THREE new "Producer" country guitar playing sets with Brent Mason! We've also added some great acoustic guitar, nylon guitar, and fingerpicking styles by Quinn Bachand, old-time autoharp, guitar soloing with Johnny Hiland, contradance styles with Daniel Lapp on piano, Quinn Bachand on guitar, and more!

# 60 Bonus Unreleased RealTracks

Our 2023 49-PAK is loaded with 60 AMAZING bonus RealTracks – 20 more bonus RealTracks than we've offered in the past! There's a new instrument added to our RealTracks collection: the Erhu, a classical Chinese violin with two strings! Electric guitar sounds by Brent Mason (7), Mike Durham (14), Tom Britt (1), and Darin Favorite (13) are included, along with Brian Allen (12) on electric bass, Miles Black on electric piano (1), Quinn Bachand's acoustic guitar playing (1), and lap steel by Rob Ickles (2). Charles Treadway brings the rhythm organ (4), and there's 70s soul electric bass by Dave Roe (3) and 70s soul electric guitar played by Pat Bergeson! We've also included bongo drums (5), tambourine tracks (3), a cowbell, and more!

# MIDI SuperTracks Set 36: Funk & Jazz Piano

This Funk & Jazz MIDI SuperTracks Set features the likes of Kevin McKendree and Miles Black. You'll find a mix of faster paced bouncy and lively piano playing, as well as paired back, mellow, and soothing rhythms and soloists in a variety of genres such as bossa, boogie, Latin jazz, and more.

# MIDI SuperTracks Set 37: Contradance Piano

This Contradance set showcases old-timey rhythm piano in both even and swing feels played by Daniel Lapp. The set has an overall jaunty and playful vibe to it that would be well suited towards folk and jig dance songs.

# MIDI SuperTracks Set 38: Funk & Blues Electric Piano and Organ

Charles Treadway and Kevin McKendree show off their organ and piano skills in this Funk & Blues Electric Piano and Organ set. This set ranges from classic funk, busier and high energy playing, all the way to a slower and smoother blues funk, and features both rhythm instruments and soloists.

# MIDI SuperTracks Set 39: SynthMaster

This SuperTracks Set is specifically designed to utilize the award-winning SynthMaster Player Synth by KV331 Audio that is included with Band-in-a-Box 2023. This collection provides a selection of synth pad, bass synth, and arpeggiators in a variety of styles, like fast rhythm funk, trance, dance and more.

#### MIDI Styles Set "Look Ma! More MIDI 9: Pop Oldies"

If you enjoy working with MIDI, you're going to love the 15 Pop Oldies MIDI styles included with Look Ma! More MIDI 9! The More MIDI 9: Pop Oldies set includes a large variety of styles, like R&B, New Orleans, rockabilly, Texas rock, blues, rock 'n' roll, Gospel, smooth jazz, and even more great Pop sounds!

#### MIDI Styles Set "Look Ma! More MIDI 10: Acid Jazz"

We've blended genres like funk, soul, hip hop, jazz and more to bring you Look Ma! More MIDI 10: Acid Jazz. There are 15 Styles included, with combinations like funk, fusion & hip hop, techno & EDM, blues, funk, smooth jazz & R&B, and more!

# **Instrumental Studies 18: Rockin' Blues Soloing**

Instrumental Studies Set 18 includes 6 electric guitar solo studies to learn from, including two straight Texas blues, two jump blues, and two Texas blues shuffle!

# **Instrumental Studies 19: Modern Country Soloing**

Learn some modern country electric guitar soloing with Instrumental Studies Set 19! We've included two studies each of country waltz soloing, modern country ballad soloing, and swinging country rock soloing!

# Artist Performance Set 13: Songs with Vocals Volume 3

You've requested more original songs with vocal performances, and we've delivered. "Songs With Vocals Volume 3" offers 20 more Band-in-a-Box MGU (song) files, each with vocal performances on the melody track, many with additional harmony vocals as well! This volume includes the gospel-pop "As If (I Could Get Away), funk-rock "As Purple Turns to Blue," 90s soul "Better Not Wait Too Long," and more. Use these to practice your mixing skills or just for listening and enjoying!

# Artist Performance Set 14: Songs with Vocals Volume 4

You'll find 20 more Band-in-a-Box MGU (song) files in "Songs With Vocals Volume 4." Some of these performances in this volume include the modern-pop "And I Forgive," country-shuffle "Been to the City," the slow hard-rock "Butterflies and Thunderclouds," and more. Each of these have the vocal performances on the melody track, many with additional harmony vocals as well!

#### RealDrums Stems Set 3: Jazz, Latin & World

RealDrums Stems Set 3 adds stems for 29 RealDrums styles. The "RealDrums Stems" feature allows you to select a RealDrum that has this feature enabled, and then when you generate it, it ALSO generates the SAME drum part, but putting each of the microphones used to record the session on its own track! So, rather than just a stereo mix of the drums, you're ALSO getting, for example, the mics on both sides of the kick drum, the hi-hat mic, the room mics, etc. In addition to that, any percussion instruments that were added to the drum part are also included. This set features exciting Afro-Cuban percussion ensembles, as well as other great Jazz, Latin & World styles, such as "Island16ths," "PartidoAlto" and more!

#### RealDrums Stems Set 4: Pop, Rock & Country

RealDrums Stems Set 4 adds stems for 22 RealDrums styles, including AltRockSlowSteady8ths<sup>^</sup>, BluesRumbaFastPercEv<sup>^</sup>, Metal8thsDoubleTime<sup>^</sup>, and many more! The "RealDrums Stems" feature allows you to select a RealDrum that has this feature enabled, and then when you generate it, it ALSO generates the SAME drum part, but putting each of the microphones used to record the session on its own track! So, rather than just a stereo mix of the drums, you're ALSO getting, for example, the mics on both sides of the kick drum, the hi-hat mic, the room mics, etc. In addition to that, any percussion instruments that were added to the drum part are also included.

#### Playable RealDrums with audio demos

Drum roll please... we've added Playable RealDrums! Just like the Playable RealTracks, you can now customize these RealDrums performances with the exact notes you want. You'll then hear those notes using a MIDI sound created from the RealDrums recording. These Playable RealDrums also include clickable audio demos.

# Playable RealTracks Set 2 (~400 additional audio demos or Playable RealTracks)

Continuing where Set 1 left off, we've added 404 more Playable RealTracks. Plus, we've now added clickable demos for all of these sounds, and we've also added demos for all of the previously released Playable RealTracks. These Playable RealTracks Hi-Q sounds match many of our RealTracks, so you can easily switch from RealTracks parts to MIDI notes while maintaining the instrument sound! Customize the RealTracks performance by adding your own notes. You will then hear those notes using a MIDI sound created from the RealTracks recording. This means you can get the RealTracks to play the notes you want at key parts of the performance, either augmenting or replacing what the RealTracks is playing, for any sections in the song.

#### **RealCombos Booster PAKS styles**

With RealCombos Booster PAK 2, Pro and MegaPAK users receive 45 new RealTracks and a whopping 80 new RealStyles! These include classic country swing, bluesy soul, bluegrass, folk-pop, praise & worship, jazz ballads, jazz funk, modern rock, funky blues, and much more!

# SynthMaster Sounds and Styles, with audio demos

Version 2023 includes the award-winning SynthMaster Player Synth by KV331 Audio. This has thousands of presets that are especially useful for modern, techno and arpeggiator sounds. SynthMaster support has been built into Band-in-a-Box so you can easily choose thousands of SynthMaster sounds, or choose "Load Hi-Q patch" dialog to choose from presets made by PG Music. Styles can be made to play with SynthMaster sounds without any need to load it. Plus, we've released MIDI SuperTracks Set 39: SynthMaster (Included in the 2023 Free Bonus PAK) that uses a mix of SynthMaster sounds, MIDI SuperTracks with arpeggiators and RealTracks.

# XPro Styles PAK 4

Coming in hot it's XPro Styles PAK 4! We're back once again with the fourth entry in our XPro Styles PAK series with 100 brand new RealStyles and 30 additional RealTracks and RealDrums that can be used to add a little spice to your Band-in-a-Box Pro version!

We've got you covered with 25 Rock & Pop, 25 Jazz & Funk, and 25 Country styles. To round out our 100 RealStyles, we've put together a collection of 25 styles that focus on the cajon as well as drums played with mallets! Here you can find everything from happy pop to funky bossa nova to minimalist singer-songwriter styles! The included 30 RealTracks and RealDrums can be used with any version of Band-in-a-Box and these additional RealTracks and RealDrums are not included in any Pro or MegaPAK package!

Here are some examples of what we've created for you: ambient pop beats, soft Americana ballads, modern mellow country, jazz-rock fusion, slow folk-rock, soulful baritone guitars, country shuffles, and many more! Variety is the spice of life, so add some to your RealStyles library today!

# Xtra Styles PAK 15

Hey ho! Here we go! You want styles?! We got 'em! Xtra Styles PAK 15 has got you covered! We got your rock and your pop, not to mention our usual jazz and country styles but this PAK also includes an entire volume dedicated to MultiStyles! A first for our Xtra Styles PAK collection! Never has there been a better time to dive in and see the phenomenally multitudinous combinations one can conceive with MultiStyles! Ok, maybe that was a bit wordy... suffice to say it's a lot! What it really comes down to is this: You want fresh, premium styles? Xtra Styles PAK 15 has you covered! Here's a short list of what is included: funky jazz pop, modern country boogie, 80s glam rock, country pop grooves, heavy alternative rock, quiet rockabilly, New Orleans funk, 12-8 blues rock, ambient rock ballads, and many more!

- **Rock-Pop 15**: This sublime collection of styles curated for Rock+Pop volume 15 will have you bouncing around the room full of joy one moment and then sitting in thoughtful contemplation the next! You can even dress up and rock out to showy 80's glam should your heart desire! We've got synth rock, we've got blues rock, we've even got some slow gospel rock. There's something for everyone!
- **MultiStyles**: For the first time ever, we've included an Xtra Styles PAK volume dedicated solely to MultiStyles! Here you'll find a wonderful mix of rock, pop, and country styles ranging from bluesy doo-wop and quick Cajun zydeco to a classic country shuffle! Other styles include outlaw country, alt rock ballads, modern synth pop, and even some retro electro soul! See all the amazing combinations you can create with Xtra Styles Pak 15: MultiStyles!
- Jazz 15: Jazz 15 features a splendid mix of jazz, funk, and Latin styles for your aural amusement. Here you can find a funk style featuring only 4 guitars and a drum kit juxtaposed with a quiet and subdued piano and vibraphone duo. You can also find modern jazz, cool bossa nova, fusion-funk soca, and even a swinging big band with a clarinet soloist. Whatever your jazz needs, we have you covered!
- **Country 15**: The final volume of Xtra Styles PAK 15, our country pack delivers a swell mix of styles ranging all the way from happy folk waltzes to smooth country soul and even some funky country pop! Whatever your cup of tea may be, we've brewed up something nice for you here! Other styles include: easy country boogie, minimal cinematic western, a rockabilly-outlaw country fusion, pop country, and many more!

# **Xtra Styles PAK 14**

What's that?! An auspicious need for more premium Band-in-a-Box styles? Fear not! For Xtra Styles PAK 14 has you covered with 140 brand spankin' new styles for your listening pleasure! As usual, Xtra Styles PAK 14 covers the basic genres: rock, pop, jazz, and country. In contrast to previous years, we had SO many great ideas for pop styles that we decided to create an ADDITIONAL 50 styles all contained in a volume of their very own! Now you can easily jam along to epic heavy metal or relax to some chill, ambient grooves! Spark your imagination and spur your creativity with all that Xtra Styles PAK 14 has to offer! Here's a quick snapshot of what you can find: heavy symphonic metal, big band mambo, ambient lo-fi jazz, psychedelic space rock, spaghetti western, energetic pop punk, New Orleans funk, Appalachian jaw-harp folk, acoustic rootsy funk, piano power ballads, and many, many more!

- **Rock-Pop 14**: This Xtra Styles volume runs the gamut of pop-rock history from heavy metal and 70's psychedelica all the way to passionate acoustic rock and energetic pop-punk! You'll find folk rock, alternative rock, funk rock, and even sedimentary rock! OK, we made that last one up, but what we didn't make up is how deep the layers go! Break apart this volume and you'll find many more wonderful rock styles to tumble around with and shine up your own unique ideas!

- **Pop 14**: An expansive genre in and of itself, we couldn't just limit our pop styles to half a volume and so here we've collected 30 amazing styles for your listening pleasure. You can find funky folk-pop jams right next to electro synth grooves and 12-string singer-songwriter styles up against vintage 50's pop. More styles include folk-reggae, synth pop, 70's pop-funk, and lo-fi grooves. In this volume, there's something for everyone!
- Jazz 14: Not to stray too far from convention, Xtra Styles PAK 14: Jazz 14 brings more of what you know and love in jazz, funk, and Latin stylings. Examples of some of these delightful styles include: modern jazz fusion, New Orleans soul, big band mambo, stride jazz, organ trios, funky sambas, and even some smooth jazz grooves! Whether you want to relax in your chair, dance up and down the stairs, or snap along without a care, Xtra Styles PAK 14: Jazz 14 has you covered!
- **Country 14**: For our country volume, we've put together a collection of styles from across the country landscape ranging from modern pop country all the way to Appalachian folk music. You'll find styles that hearken to the days of spaghetti westerns and styles that reminisce over rural old-time folk and even a few cheesy country ballads! Other styles include: alternative country rock, slow rockabilly blues, driving train beats, and even some modern bro-country rock. Don't miss out on this amazing collection!

Xtra Styles PAK 13 (Released June 2022) - 200 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Singer/Songwriter

Xtra Styles PAK 12 (Released December 2021) - 200 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Blues

Xtra Styles PAK 11 (Released May 2021) - 200 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Half & Double-Time

Xtra Styles PAK 10 (Released December 2020) - 200 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Folk Celebration

Xtra Styles PAK 9 (Released May 2020) - 200 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Folk

Xtra Styles PAK 8 (Released December 2019) - 164 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Celtic

Xtra Styles PAK 7 (Released August 2019) - 164 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Americana

Xtra Styles PAK 6 (Released Dec 2018) - 162 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Trad Folk & Jazz

Xtra Styles PAK 5 (Released July 2018) - 160 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and MIDI Styles

Xtra Styles PAK 4 (Released November 2017) - 150 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Folk & Beyond

Xtra Styles PAK 3 (Released June 2017) - 160 RealStyles for Jazz, Rock-Pop, Country, and Americana

Xtra Styles PAK 2 (Released December 2016) - 161 RealStyles for Jazz, Country, Rock-Pop, and Bluegrass & World

Xtra Styles PAK 1 (Released August 2016) - 164 RealStyles for Jazz, Country, Rock-Pop, and Singer/Songwriter

# **Chapter 2: Summary of New Features**

# Partial Track Re-Generation

Now you can re-generate sections of RealTracks by simply highlighting the section and pressing Ctrl+F8. This generates a different part each time, so you can keep regenerating to find the best replacement. You can also re-generate using different RealTracks than the original. Normally, you would choose to replace the existing part but you can also set this to merge so you will hear both parts. This also works with different RealTracks than the original on the same track. There is an optional floating Regeneration window with settings (Alt+F8), which allows you to customize the re-generations.

# Undo Available for Song or Track Generation

When you generate (or re-generate) a full song or part/whole track, you can undo it to get back to the previous generation with the main menu  $Edit \mid Undo$  or Ctrl+Z.

# Playable RealDrums

You can now customize the RealDrums performance by adding your own notes. You will then hear those notes using a MIDI sound created from the RealDrums recording. This means you can get the RealDrums to play the notes you want at key parts of the performance, either augmenting or replacing what the RealDrums is playing, for any sections in the song. This includes full drum kits in GM note number format. You can enter the notes in the Notation (using drum notation) or the Piano Roll window.

# Playable MIDI Tracks and MIDI SuperTracks

You can now customize the MIDI generated tracks by adding your own notes (on the same track). This uses the same sound as the MIDI tracks. You can use this to replace or augment sections of the performance. You can re-generate the MIDI tracks, and your customizations will remain.

# **Master Volume Automation**

This node-based volume automation allows fine volume control of the Master track. This allows easy creation of fades, crescendos, mutes, etc. This is in addition to the individual track volume automation.

# **RealTracks Stems**

Some RealTracks (e.g., such as quartet vocals, string quartet, blues horns, crooner big band, etc.) have multiple track recordings. Previously, you could only generate a single track with the entire group. Now, you can generate the "stems," which are the individual tracks as recorded. So, for example, for a string quartet you would get 5 tracks - the full mix and 4 separate tracks for each of the instruments. This allows you to mix them as you'd like and also mute parts if you want to play along.

# **RealDrums Fills**

RealDrums fills can be controlled, so you can get a drum fill at any bar without needing a part marker section change. You can also get no drum fill on the bar before a part marker.

# SynthMaster Player Synth Included

This award-winning synth by KV331 Audio has thousands of presets that are especially useful for modern, techno and arpeggiator sounds.

SynthMaster support built into Band-in-a-Box includes:

- MIDI SuperTracks that use sounds with arpeggiators.
- Access to SynthMaster sounds using the "Load Plugin" from the track's right-menu to choose from thousands of SynthMaster sounds, or choose "Load Hi-Q patch "dialog to choose from presets made by PG Music for some nice sounds available in SynthMaster just by picking a patch.
- SynthMaster Player comes with thousands of sounds, so you can simply select *Choose Plugin* from the Plugin tab menu on the Mixer, choose SynthMaster, and choose one of these sounds from the SynthMaster Player panel.
- Styles can be made to play with SynthMaster sounds without need to load it.
- MIDI SuperTracks Disk for SynthMaster synth is included, using a mix of SynthMaster sounds, MIDI SuperTracks with arpeggiators and RealTracks.

# EZ-RealTracks/RealDrums Folder Locations Dialog

When you rebuild a style list, you can confirm and set the correct locations of your RealTracks and RealDrums folders. Previously, setting these folders took time as they were set in different locations and not incorporated into the style rebuild. Now, there is a dialog that shows the current locations (e.g., *C:\bb\RealTracks* and *C:\bb\Drums*) and the number of RealTracks and RealDrums present in these locations. This allows you to confirm that you are using the correct locations as you see the expected numbers of RealTracks and RealDrums found in the folders. The dialog will display in the StylePicker when rebuilding the styles list, and also show once when you run or update the program. It is also accessible from the Track Settings and Actions dialog (F7).

# "Different Riffs" Setting for Track Re-Generation

The Regeneration window (Alt+F8) and MultiRiff dialog (F8) have settings for "Different Riffs." If the option is set to "always," each generation will be different from previous ones. If it's set to "start," the first bar of the section generated will be

different from previous ones. If it's set to "none," the generation might be similar to previous ones. For example, when you set it to always different and regenerate a few bars of a sax solo, you should hear different phrases each time.

# **Editing Functions for RealTracks/RealDrums Tracks**

You can now copy, cut, paste, delete, insert, and do other editing functions to the RealTracks and RealDrums tracks. This allows you to edit the tracks while preserving the ability for the tracks to regenerate new material, and the file size saved is tiny as the track isn't converted to audio.

# **Auto-Save Song**

If you did not close Band-in-a-Box properly in the last session, when you restart it, you will see a message dialog that asks if you want to load the auto-saved song. This prevents losing your work if something crashes on your system.

# Stereo VU Meters on the Mixer

In the Mixer window, the VU meters for the different tracks now show panning information.

#### Audio Input Monitoring

This is like "Audio Thru" and it routes incoming audio to Audio Out.

#### **RealTracks Picker Enhancements**

The "Stems" column is added to show you the number of individual instruments/voices available for the RealTrack.

There is a new menu item in the [#] filter button to find RealTracks with stems.

A right-click menu is added with commonly used functions (e.g., clear filter, set or edit favorites, show similar RealTracks, etc.).

You can launch the StylePicker that will show only styles that use the selected RealTracks.

You can set favorites by using the right-click menu or clicking on the [\*] (Set as Favorite) button.

The Choose RealTracks from Favorites and Recent dialog shows favorites followed by recently used RealTracks. The list can be filtered with text string. For example, type banjo to find the ones with banjo in the name.

There is a Favorite RealTracks Editor that allows you to re-arrange/add/remove your favorites and add comments, which are searchable in the filter.

A "Similar" button is added that will show RealTracks similar to the currently selected one.

#### **RealDrums Picker Enhancements**

A right-click menu is added with commonly used functions (e.g., clear filter, set or edit favorites, show similar or compatible RealDrums, etc.)

You can set favorites by using the right-click menu or clicking on the [\*] column.

The Choose RealDrums from Favorites and Recent dialog shows favorites followed by recently used RealDrums. The list can be filtered with text string. For example, type fusion to find the ones with fusion in the name.

There is a Favorite RealDrums Editor that allows you to re-arrange/add/remove your favorites and add comments, which are searchable in the filter.

A "Similar" button is added that shows RealDrums that are similar to the currently selected one.

There is a new menu item in the [#] filter button to find RealDrums with stems.

# **Copy Song to Text Enhancements**

The feature that copies the song as a text to clipboard or .txt file has been enhanced with options to:

- Add lyrics as a [Lyrics] section
- Use Tab delimiter for Bars, so the text can be pasted into a spreadsheet with columns for each bar
- Use / for every beat, to see | C / / / | instead of | C |
- Add Bar Numbers to each bar

# SongPicker Enhancements

The SongPicker auto-rebuilds for folders if there are less than a specified number of songs. This means the SongPicker will show all songs including new ones without needing to rebuild.

There is an option to include/exclude subfolders from the song list.

Message about rebuilding now is a question so that pressing YES saves the extra step of needing to rebuild it.

# Chord Track Added

Chord track is added, for use with a VST (e.g., arpeggiators want a chord track) or for simple "pad" (held chords) tracks. Chord track can be generated on any track. Specifying note range is required.

There is an option to always put a chord track on a specified track (e.g., Utility track #16).

Specific MIDI SuperTracks are added that generate a simple chord track (triads/7ths) or a chord track including 9ths/13ths. Adding these MIDI SuperTracks to your track will write a chord track in the range set, for use with arpeggiators or other VST's wanting a chord track. With each play a new chord track is written. To do this, open the Select MIDI SuperTracks and choose one that has "Arpeggio" in the name.

# Fit-to-Note-Range MIDI Transpose Added

This will take any MIDI track and transpose the octave of the notes so that they enter the note range specified. For example, if you have a bass MIDI track, and the notes are going too low for your MIDI patch, you can transpose to the instrument range, and notes will have the octave raised as needed. This function is in the track button menu and also available for MIDI SuperTracks.

# **Yellow Messages Enhancements**

The notification messages that appear at the bottom right of the screen are enhanced. They are smaller, occupying less of the screen.

The flash message colors can now be chosen in the Display Options dialog.

A handy function is added to easily see the flash message log. Type L O G Enter, and FlashMessageLog.txt will open.

# Help for "Style Not Found"

If a style is not found when loading it, you will be given an option to open the StylePicker showing compatible styles that you do have. Also, it shows information about the missing style like instrumentation, genre, and audio demo so you get an idea of what replacement you need.

# StylePicker Enhancements

A style chosen as a prototype always shows in the list, even with a filter applied.

4-bar preview is now settable to 4, 8, 12, 16, 20, 24, 28 or 32 bars.

Double-click on a style can be set to play the Chord Sheet chords instead of the pre-made demo.

A progress bar will show at the top of the StylePicker during style rebuild.

Style rebuild shows a dialog to confirm RealTracks/RealDrums folder locations.

The StylePicker launches when a style is not found and shows you replacement suggestions.

The [Action] button - "Reset Dialog to Default" menu item sets both the StylePicker main screen and StylePicker Options dialog to default.

# **Generate Intros Using Song Chords**

An option is added to incorporate the chords in any section into the intro. For example, you can use the last 4 bars of the song as an intro.

# More Track Button Right-Click Menu Items

Menu items are added for copy/move tracks, transpose octave to note range, generate chord track, regenerate part of track (Ctrl+F8), regenerate window (Alt+F8), cut riff, copy riff, paste riff (relative to copy point), paste *N* of copies of riff, paste riff (merge with underlying audio), erase riff, and copy/move tracks.

Find a Drums Sub for Style item is added to the Drums track. This will list RealDrums that would work for the current style.

# **Track Settings and Actions Dialog Enhancements**

The dialog has a new button for various MIDI editing commands like transpose, generate chord track, transpose octave to note range, etc.

There is also a new button to copy/move tracks.

# Summary Section in "What Add-ons do I have?" Dialog

This lists the percentage (%) of RealTracks, RealDrums, Styles and add-on styles with links to pgmusic.com with more information.

# Pre-made "Showcase" Audio Demos for Playable RealTracks and RealDrums

These show how the playable MIDI sound (sfz) compares to the audio RealTracks and RealDrums, by playing 4 bars of playable sound, then 4 bars of playable sound with a band, and then 4 bars of RealTracks with a band.

# **Playable Tracks Enhancement**

You can now easily increase/decrease volume of the playable MIDI sounds (using velocity).

# Chord display for Nashville Notation and Roman Numerals now shows minor keys as 1m

For example, Am in the key of Am would be 1m. This is settable if you prefer 6m.

# Display Option of Red Lines in Bars on Chord Sheet

The Bar Settings (F5) dialog has an option to hide the "red lines" in bars that have changes. This can be done per song or global setting. You can toggle the setting back on when you want to see them again, but it gives the Chord Sheet a cleaner look when you are just playing songs.

# **Notation Enhancements**

The Notation window (Editable or Staff Roll mode) has hotkeys (Ctrl+Alt+Arrow R/L) for changing note times left/right.

Rests now transpose from treble to bass.

You can now highlight an area of non-editable notation.

The Lead Sheet can set the number of staves to one per page in Options.

There is a new notation setting for note colors: black (a chord tone), green (not a chord tone) and orange (not a chord tone and not a scale tone).

# **Notation Printing Enhancements**

There is a new *File* menu item *Print Song in Lead Sheet Mode* that prints the song using the Lead Sheet options (such as fake sheet). The hotkey is Ctrl+Shift+P. This is in addition to *File* | *Print Song* (Ctrl+P) that prints using the Notation window options.

When you do not include staff lines in printout, there is an option to show chords above instead of inside each bar.

Band-in-a-Box remembers all items in the Print Options dialog when returning and after reboot.

The Print Options dialog has hotkeys for "OK - Preview/Graphics" and others.

Print Range remembers last settings and uses that as default.

# XML Enhancement

Importing a MusicXML file to Utility tracks is enhanced, so tracks don't default to all going on the Melody track.

# New Hotkeys

Ctrl+A selects all in the various windows like Chord Sheet, Notation, Audio Edit and Piano Roll.

Alt+Shift+Z solos the current track on the mixer.

L O G Enter opens the flash message log file (FlashMessageLog.txt).

(Audio Edit window) Ctrl+Shift+V mix-pastes audio.

(Audio Edit window) Shift+Delete deletes a region of audio.

(Piano Roll window) + (plus) increases velocities of the selected notes by 1.

(Piano Roll window) Shift++ (plus) increases velocities of the selected notes by 5.

(Piano Roll window) - (minus) decreases velocities of the selected notes by 1.

(Piano Roll window) Shift+- (minus) decreases velocities of the selected notes by 5.

(Piano Roll window) ~ (tilde) randomizes velocities of the selected notes (-1 to +1).

(Piano Roll window) Shift+~ (tilde) randomizes velocities of the selected notes (-5 to +5).

# Miscellaneous

Search-and-Replace chords now sets to the selected area.

Songs loaded that previously had audio but no longer have audio files will remove the audio settings (tempo, transpose) from the track.

You can now drop VST plugins (.dll files) onto the plugin selector dialog to add them to the Band-in-a-Box plugin lists.

A song setting to allow chord variations in repeated sections is added.

The DAW button turns red to clearly indicate the DAW plugin mode is currently on.

The "Select Hi-Q MIDI Patch Plugin" menu item always shows in the track button menu.

MIDI tracks that use their own MIDI plugin display VU meters based on audio output rather than estimated MIDI events.

The color selection combo box in the Display Options dialog is now bigger.

Increase/decrease note velocity adjusting features are added to the Piano Roll window. These can be accessed from the rightclick menu or hotkeys.

# Many Accessibility Enhancements

See the list at https://www.pgmusic.com/bbwin.new.accessibility.htm

# **Feature Browser Enhancements**

The Feature Browser (accessed from the / Enter keys) has been updated to include the latest 2023 features.

There is a new button to filter the list to show the latest 2023 features. You can add keywords to find new features for topics of interest.

... and more!

# Chapter 3: QuickStart Tutorial

Let's take a close look at the great new features in Band-in-a-Box 2023!

# **Partial Track Re-Generation**

Now you can re-generate sections of RealTracks by simply highlighting the section and pressing **Ctrl+F8**. This generates a different part each time, so you can keep regenerating to find the best replacement. You can also re-generate using different RealTracks than the original. Normally, you would choose to replace the existing part but you can also set this to merge so you will hear both parts. This also works with different RealTracks than the original on the same track.

Let's open a song that has a soloist (e.g., saxophone soloist). Now, press PLAY to generate the song. We'll focus on the sax soloist track since we want to fine tune the solo to our liking.

First off, select the track using the Mixer.

Bass		
Piano	0.0 +5.61 65	
Drums	MS RealDrums=JazzBrushes: a: Brushes Swirling	
Guitar	0.0 4.39 55 M S 🕷 ~558:Guitar, Acoustic, Rhythm Jazz Freddie	ΙΟ
Sax	0.0 +8.75 85	

Now, listen to the solo. Let's say you don't like what the sax plays for four bars, starting at bar 9. Highlight the bars 9-12 by dragging on the Chord Sheet. You can also do this in the Audio Edit or Notation window.



Let's generate the selected section. Either press Ctrl+F8 or right-click on the track button and go to *Track Actions* | *Auto Regenerate Part of RealTracks*.



That's it. You will now hear the song start playing at bar 8 (one bar before the section to provide a lead-in) and then you will hear the new solo that's generated just for these two bars.

A great thing about this is that the solo generated will be different from the previous one(s) you've generated. If you don't like the new one, try again and generate another one. You can keep going and generate up to 40 variations. And another great thing is that they all will be different from each other. This is new for 2023, as previously it was "hit or miss" if you'd get a different variation or not. And there are more variations available now (typically 40 instead of 20 in previous versions).

If you find one you like, great! Just stop and continue, maybe moving to another section of the song or switching to a different track or something else entirely.

So, the Ctrl+F8 keys can become your "Fix-it" tool for fixing any section of any RealTracks that you don't like, including soloist, background tracks, comping etc.

If you prefer not to make a selection or you want a more customized approach to regenerate these sections, there is an optional floating **Regeneration** window, which allows you to make settings to customize the type of re-generations.

Let's press Alt+F8 or right-click on the track button and go to *Track Actions* | *Regenerate Window*.

Regenerate part of track: Sax: 361:Sax, Tenor, Jaz		×			
Track s Sax: 361:Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw	140[RT]			~	Main RealTrack
Alternate RealTrack <none></none>				Alte	rnate RealTrack X
Bar_based range					
Range to regenerate (bars)	Copy	Cu <u>t</u>	<u>D</u> elete	Insert	Erase
Bar << 1 # bars 2 >>	<u>P</u> aste	Paste Merge	Paste Relati <u>v</u> e	Paste <u>M</u> ultiple	Options
Chorus 1		<u>R</u> edo	U <u>n</u> do	<u>O</u> K - (Re)Generate	Help

This is a floating window, so you can do any other Band-in-a-Box function as you keep this window open.

There's a track selector to confirm or change what track you want to re-generate.

You can set or change the current track using the [Main RealTrack] button.

You can generate a different RealTracks by pressing the [Alternate RealTrack] button and selecting an alternate RealTracks. For example, you may want 4 bars of a flute solo instead of sax but want to keep sax as the main soloist on the track.

Pressing the **[X]** button will clear this selection.

The [S] button will solo the track

The [Undo] button will undo the last generation. (Note that you can also choose Edit | Undo or Ctrl+Z to do this.)

You can generate based on either the full bar boundaries or precise regions including bars/beat and ticks. This is done with the **Bar-based range** option. When this option is selected, you will see Bar, Chorus and Number of bars. The [<<] button will set to the beginning of the song, and [>>] button sets to the end. When this option is not selected, you will see a precise range in bars/beats/ticks. The [<] button moves to the beginning of the bar. The [<<] moves to start of song. [>] moves to end of bar. [>>] moves to end of song. If you make selections on the Chord Sheet, Audio Edit, Piano Roll, or Notation window, these settings for range will update. For example, if you select a range on the Audio Edit window, you will get that precise range as long as the "Bar-based range" option de-selected.

The [Copy] button copies a range of riff to the clipboard.

The [Paste] button pastes the riff to the current location, overwriting the existing riff at the destination.

The **[Paste Relative]** button pastes the riff to the same relative location in the bar as the copied portion. For example, if the copied range started at beat 2, the relative paste will start at beat 2

The **[Paste Multiple]** button lets you select the number of pastes. Hold down the Shift key as you click on this button to make the pastes merge with existing riffs.

The **[Paste Merge]** button pastes the riff to the current location and merges it with the existing riff so you will hear both riffs/ The **[Cut]** button removes a range of riff and copies it to the clipboard.

The [Erase] button erases a range of riff.

The [Insert] button inserts the selected amount of space and shifts all audio following the inserted region to a later time.

The [Delete] button deletes the selected region. All audio following the deleted region will be shifted to an earlier time.

The [Options] button shows options for the partial regenerations.

Partial Regenerate	e Options	-		×			
Allow Lead-in							
Generate an extra beat (for Soloists)							
✓ Overwrite (replace) existing							
🗹 Auto Play							
Different Riffs	Entire riff is different			$\sim$			
	Forget Rec	ent Riffs	Used				
Defaults	OK		Cancel				

Allow Lead-in allows some of the re-generations to start early as a pickup to the range you've selected.

Generate an extra beat will finish the riff up to 1 beat after the selected range.

**Overwrite (replace) existing** will make the generation replace the existing part. Setting it to false will merge with the existing generation. For example, maybe you have a sax solo and would like to have sax and flute soloing together for a few bars. You can use this setting to accomplish this by setting this option to false. Remember to set it back to normal when you prefer the re-generations to "replace" instead of "merge."

Auto-Play will play the song from the bar before the selected range, so you can hear what it sounds like.

**Different Riffs** determines how the riffs will be different from previous ones. If it's set to "always," each generation will be different from previous ones. If it's set to "start," the first bar of the section generated will be different from previous one. If it's set to "none," the generation might be similar to the previous one.

[Forget Recent Riffs Used] allows Band-in-a-Box to "forget" the previous ones so that you can generate using all the available ones. Note that re-generation from a different bar, different track or different song will "forget" the previous re-generations, so you likely won't need to press this button much, if at all.

# **Undo Available for Song or Track Generation**

When you generate (or re-generate) a full song or part/whole track, you can undo it to get back to the previous generation. As with other Undo functions, choose menu *Edit* | *Undo Tracks Generation* or menu *Edit* | *Undo Generation of Song Tracks*, or just

press hotkey Ctrl+Z.



# **Playable RealDrums**

You can now customize the RealDrums performance by adding your own notes. You will then hear those notes using a MIDI sound created from the RealDrums recording. This means you can get the RealDrums to play the notes you want at key parts of the performance, either augmenting or replacing what the RealDrums is playing, for any sections in the song. This includes full drum kits in GM note number format. You can enter the notes in the **Notation** (using drum notation) or the **Piano Roll** window.

To add some Playable RealDrums, load a song that has RealDrums. Press PLAY to generate it. Choose a track with Drums. Open the **Notation** window, and you will see the notation for the Drums track.



**E** Switch the Notation window to the Editable or Staff Roll mode to enable editing of the Drums track.

**PT** Press the **[PT]** button and select *Enable Playable Track* from the menu. When this menu item is enabled, you can choose a MIDI Drum sound that will match the selected RealDrums. You can use the same functions as for Playable RealTracks. Inserting your own notes (green color) and muting sections of the RealDrums will allow you to add notes to the current RealDrums or replace sections of the RealDrums. For example, add a cymbal crash, control the volume using the velocity of the MIDI note (or overall volume setting using the **[PT]** button menu).



# Playable MIDI Tracks and MIDI SuperTracks

You can now customize the MIDI generated tracks by adding your own notes (on the same track). This uses the same sound as the MIDI tracks. You can use this to replace or augment sections of the performance. You can re-generate the MIDI tracks, and your customizations will remain.

**PT** In a manner similar to the Playable RealTracks and RealDrums, press the **[PT]** button in the **Notation** window (Editable or Staff Roll mode) and select *Enable Playable Track* from the menu. This allows you to add or replace sections of the MIDI track or MIDI SuperTracks. These additions you make won't get erased when you generate new MIDI tracks.

0 Piano # PT	Disable Playable Track
	Current sound: 028 - Pedal Steel, Clean, West Coast Ballad [SN0342].tgs
	Make a Mute Region to mute RealTracks Remove Mute Region at current time
	Make notes in selected area playable notes Make notes in selected area non-playable notes Delete all notes in From/Thru range of selected area
	Change loudness (velocity) of playable notes in selected area Set MIDI Volume (and velocity) of Playable RT SFZ Sound
	Select a new Playable SFZ Sound Re-select recommended playable SFZ Sound

# **Master Volume Automation**

This node-based volume automation allows fine volume control of the Master track. This allows easy creation of fades, crescendos, mutes, etc. This is in addition to the individual track volume automation.

Open the Audio Edit window (Ctrl+Shift+A), select the Master track, and press the volume automation mode button.



2

r 🗸 🖌 🖌 UT

This will show blue lines on the Master track. You can click anywhere on the blue line to add a node (a small blue dot), which acts as an anchor. If you add more nodes and then move some of them up or down, the blue line will be drawn between nodes that you've entered. And the position of the blue line at any given point determines the amount in decibels that the audio is increased or decreased at that point.



# **RealTracks Stems**

Some RealTracks (e.g., quartet vocals, string quartet, blues horns, crooner big band, etc.) have multiple track recordings. Previously, you could only generate a single track with the entire group. Now, you can generate the "stems," which are the individual tracks as recorded. So, for example, for a string quartet you would get 5 tracks - the full mix and 4 separate tracks for each of the instruments. This allows you to mix them as you'd like and also mute parts if you want to play along.

In the **RealTracks Picker**, you can find which RealTracks have stems if you look at the "Stems" column. It shows you the number of individual instruments/voices available.

Name	Туре	Feel	Tempo	Genre	#	N/A	Set	Stereo	Chart	Artist	TS	Holds	S I	D 9	Stems* 🝃
Vocal, Rhythm Doo-WopSlow128 Sw 065	Rhythm	Sw	65	Рор	4015		392	St	N	David Wise,			S	1	12
Horn Section, Background CroonerBallad11-Part Sw 060	Background	Sw	60	Jazz	2792		265	St	N	Jim Clark		260	S	1	11
Horn Section, Background CroonerBossa10-Part Ev 110	Background	Ev	110	Jazz	2781		264	St	N	Jim Clark		350	S	1	10
Horn Section, Background CroonerBigBand9-Part Sw 110	Background	Sw	110	Jazz	2593		236	St	N	Jim Clark		350	S	1	10
Horn Section, Soloist CroonerBigBandShoutChorus11-Part Sw 110	Soloist	Sw	110	Jazz	2977		294	St	N	Jim Clark		350	S	1	10
Multi[Thickened=5] Vocals, Background GospelCool3-part Sw16	Background	Sw	75	Gospel,Soul,Pop	3555		344	St	N	Britt Savage		600	S	9	9
Vocals, Background GospelCool3-part Sw16 075	Background	Sw	75	Gospel,Soul,Pop	3527		344	St	N	Britt Savage		600	S	ç	9

You can also find them using the RealTracks Stems Available and/or Found menu item in the [#] filter button.

$\checkmark$	RealTracks Stems Avaiable and/or Found		Any
	Video RealTracks Available and/or Found		Stems Available
	RealTracks Artist	~	Stems Found

When you select RealTracks that have stems, you will see what they are just below the list. Using the checkboxes, you can load all stems, the selected stems, or the mix of all stems.

String Quartet, Rhyth	hm PopEvenChamber Ev 120	Strings (49)	Rhythm	Ev	120	Рор	2507	232	St	Ν	Avery Bright	
String Quartet, Rhyth	Strings (49)	Rhythm	Ev	120	Рор	2508	232	St	Ν	Avery Bright		
Collo Packground Dr	Collo (42)	Dockar	Ev/	140	Don	2500	าวา	Mn	N	Mott Nolcon		
All Stems	Mix 🖂	🗹 Violin1	iolin1 🗹 Violin2			iolin2 🗹 Viola					🗹 Cello	

If you select all or individual stems, each stem will be loaded to separate tracks, so you can control volume, pan, etc. for each stem using the Mixer.

Mi	ixer	Plugins	Pianos	Patches 🏼 🍄 🗗
	\	/olume	Pan	Reverb
Mix	MS÷		- [90]	
Violin1	MS		109	
Violin2 -	MS		- 71	42 - 31 0
Viola	MS		- 110	
Cello	MS		74	39 - 53 0

There is a demo song "RealTracks Stems - Crooner Jazz Horn Section stems.SGU" in C:\bb\Documentation\Tutorials\Tutorial - BB2023. When you open this songs, a mix of stems and 10 individual stems will be loaded to the Utility tracks.

Mixer	Plugins	Pianos		Patc	hes	<b>*</b> -
Volume		Pan	F	leverb	Tone	
Mix MS 🕷 📖 🔤						= 0
Hom Section 1 M S E		2			<b>50 -</b>	١
Horn Section 2 M S F		3	-13		50 -	0
Hom Section 3 M S S		3	13		50 -	0
Horn Section 4 M S S		20 00	-24		50 -	= 0
Horn Section 5 M S S		20 0	24		50 -	= 0
Horn Section 6 M S S		7 7			50 -	= 0
Horn Section 7 M S S		20 0	-24		50 -	= 0
Hom Section 8 M S E			24		50 -	0
Horn Section 9 M S S		3	-13		50 -	= 0
Hom Section 10 M S E		3	13		50 -	- 0

# **RealDrums Fills**

RealDrums fills can be controlled, so you can get a drum fill at any bar without needing a part marker section change. You can also get no drum fill on the bar before a part marker. Previously, the only way to get the drums to play a fill would be to put a part marker on the bar following the fill.

(FR)
100
Bar

Press the [Bar Settings] toolbar button or the F5 key to open the Edit Settings for Current Bar dialog.

Allow Drum Fill If you enable the "Allow Drum Fill" option, you'll get a drum fill at the current bar.

Allow Drum Fill If you are at a bar before a part marker and you *don't* want a drum fill, then disable the option.

# SynthMaster Player Synth Included

This award-winning synth by KV331 Audio has thousands of presets that are especially useful for modern, techno and arpeggiator sounds.

Note: SynthMaster Player VST is a 64-bit plugin only. There is no 32-bit version available.

SynthMaster support built into Band-in-a-Box includes:

- MIDI SuperTracks that use sounds with arpeggiators.
- Access to SynthMaster sounds using the "Load Plugin" from the track's right-menu to choose from thousands of SynthMaster sounds, or choose "Load Hi-Q patch "dialog to choose from presets made by PG Music for some nice sounds available in SynthMaster just by picking a patch.
- SynthMaster Player comes with thousands of sounds, so you can simply select *Choose Plugin* from the Plugin tab menu on the Mixer, choose SynthMaster, and choose one of these sounds from the SynthMaster Player panel.
- Styles can be made to play with SynthMaster sounds without need to load it.
- MIDI SuperTracks Disk for SynthMaster synth is included, using a mix of SynthMaster sounds, MIDI SuperTracks with arpeggiators and RealTracks.

SynthMaster is installed to the following folders by default:

C:\Program Files\KV331 Audio

C:\Program Files\VSTPlugins\KV331 Audio

To use SynthMaster as a default synth, open the **MIDI/Audio Driver** Setup dialog (*Options* | *Preferences* | [MIDI Driver]) and press the **[VSTi/DXi Synth]** button.

VSTi/DXi Synth [None]	
n Choose a plugin	
Eilter	
⟨<> None <dxi> CoyoteWT <vsti> [jBridge]Garritan: [jBridge]ARIA Player</vsti></dxi>	
VSTix KV331 Audio: SynthMaster 2 Player VSTix Plogue Art et Technologie, Inc: sforzando VSTix SynthFont: VSTSynthFont64	

SynthMaster is automatically added to the plugin list. Simply select "<VSTi> JV331 Audio: SynthMaster 2 Player" from the list and press OK.

i/DXi Synth [KV331 Audio: SynthMaster 2 Pla When SynthMaster is selected as a default synth, its name shows in the [VSTi/DXi Synth] button.

To select MIDI SuperTracks that use SynthMaster sounds, right-click on a track button and choose *Select MIDI SuperTrack for this track* from the menu.

O Strings Select MIDI SuperTrack for this track

This will open the Select MIDI SuperTracks dialog. Type a "SynthMaster" text to filter the list.

Select MIDI SuperTracks	
Eilter String SynthMaster	# Show All
4367: Bass, Synth SynthmasterFunky SmoothCool Sw16 075 (Jeff Lorber)         4368: Synth, Pad, SynthmasterLastInstant HighEthereal 75 (Blair Masters)         4369: Synth, Plucked SynthmasterTranceAttack OffbeatHits 120 (Ed (Great Oz) Clare)         4370: Bass, Synth SynthmasterVintageSubby Funky16ths ev16 110 (Miles Black)         4371: Synth, Pad, SynthmasterSlowPad Soft 120 (Blair Masters)         4372: Bass, Synth SynthmasterBassBros Held 95 (Ed (Great Oz) Clare)         4373: Synth, Arp, SynthmasterDaiceArp SyncHits ev16 095 (Ed (Great Oz) Clare)         4374: Synth, Arp, SynthmasterDaiceArp SyncHits ev16 095 (Ed (Great Oz) Clare)         4375: Synth, Arp, SynthmasterMelodicWaveArp SyncHits ev16 095 (Ed (Great Oz) Clare)         4376: Synth, Arp, SynthmasterDelicateSoundsII 075 (Blair Masters)         4376: Synth, Arp, SynthmasterDelicateSoundsII 075 (Blair Masters)	

Some of them have arpeggiators in the sounds. Select one you like and press OK and answer yes to the confirmation message.

	×						
OK to add this SuperPatch to Strings track?: SynthMaster\089 - ARP - Uplifting.tgs							
Yes	No						

• **Strings** You will see that the track label has turned blue to indicate that it is a MIDI SuperTrack.

In the Mixer, you can confirm that the SynthMaster synth sound is loaded to the track.



If you want to customize the sound, click on the SynthMaster synth in the [Plugins] tab to open the synth window.

-		E <sup>r</sup> player	Aiyn Zahev CPU: 1.8 %		UNDO REDO	=		a	u d
ROWSER SHOP							FX		
					PRESET Q 🗂				
					50 - AR VintageRoller RL		LAY	R FX ROUT	ring
Bass			Aiyn Zahev	Factory Presets	1 - AR Volorya YY			LAYER 1	
Bowed Strings		Ambient			52 - AR Walk On Sunshine				
Brass		Baroque	<b>BigTone Studios</b>	My Presets	53 - AR Warzone YY			- ( )	
Drums	Additive	Bluegrass	Bluffmunkey		🟠 54 - AR Xoma YY		INSERT 1	Distortion	Disto
Flute	Aftertouch		Bulent Biyikoglu		55 - AR Your Dreams KS (HOLD!)				_
Guitar		Breakbeat	Fragment Audio		☆ 56 - ARP - Butter		INSERT 2	LoFi	L
Mallet Instruments	Amplitude Mod		Frank Neumann		🟠 57 - ARP - Metal Harp		INSERT 3	Ensemble	Ense
Multitrack	Analog	Cinematic	Gercek Dorman		🟠 58 - ARP - Raspy Gate		INSERT 4	Phaser	Ph
Organ	Arpeggiated	Classical	Insigna (i)		59 - ARP - Sweet Chords		INSERT 5		
Percussion	AudioFX		Kevin Schroeder		60 - ARP - Sweet Chords II				
Piano/Keys	Bright	Dance	Michael Chamerski		61 - ARP - Trance bass layer				
Plucked Strings	Chord	Deep House	Michael Kastrup		62 - ARP - Uplifting			YER SEND	
Reed Instruments	Clean		Mr.Shoufuku		63 - ARP 8Bit Star FN			BUS1 BUS	
Sound Effects	Dark	DnB	NatLife		🟠 64 - ARP Abyss		AYER1		
Soundscapes	Deep	DubStep	Nori Ubukata		65 - ARP Acid Bath				
Synth Lead	Digital	Easy Listening	Rob Lee		66 - ARP Acid Sugar ARK		AYER2	$\dot{\frown}$	
Synth Misc		Electro	Selcuk Ergen		67 - ARP AfricanPolirhythm GD		AYEK2		
Synth Pad	Distorted	Electronica	Teoman Pasinlioglu		68 - ARP Ambient Arp				
Vocal		Ethnic	Ufuk Kevser		69 - ARP Bass Berlin Style MK		GLOB	AL FX ROU	TING
	Electric	Folk	Vandalism		70 - ARP Bass Jarre Style MK		0100		BU
			Vorpalsound		271 - ARP Bass Trap			BUS 1	
	Expansion		Xenos Soundworks		72 - ARP BassArp GD		INSERT 1	Vocoder	-
			Yuli Yolo		73 - ARP Bells		INSERT 2	Delay	
		Future Bass			74 - ARP Bugstenner GD				

You can also access SynthMaster sounds using the Hi-Q patch dialog. Right-click on a track button, and go to Select MIDI Instrument (Patch) | Select Mi-Q MIDI Patch Plugin.

Select MIDI Instrument (Patch) Select Hi-Q MIDI Patch Plugin []

This will open the dialog that lists Hi-Q patch plugins (.tgs). Type "SynthMaster" in the text filter and select any of the presets that PG Music has made.

M Choose from List
Eilter SynthMaster Show All
No Preset wanted (Remove/Clear any current preset)
SynthMaster\033 - BA Jazz Bass.tgs
SynthMaster\034 - BA ElecBassJazz MK.tgs
SynthMaster\039 - BassBros(i).tgs
SynthMaster\039 - BS VintageSynthSubby RL.tgs
SynthMaster\081 - AR Dance Arp.tgs
SynthMaster\081 - LD Trance Attack.tgs
SynthMaster\089 - AR MelodicWaveArp.tgs
SynthMaster\089 - ARP - Uplifting.tgs
SynthMaster\089 - ARP Soft Touch ARK.tgs
SynthMaster\089 - AT Last Instant YY.tgs
SynthMaster\089 - PAD Chordy UK.tgs
SynthMaster/089 - PAD Delicate Sounds II.tgs
SynthMaster\089 - PD SlowPad FL.tgs
SynthMaster\StyleUse\089 - PD SlowPad FL +10.tgs

SynthMaster comes with thousands of sounds. To choose a sound, right-click on the [Plugin] in the Mixer to open a menu and select *Choose Plugin*.

	Mixer		Plug	ins	
	v	/olume			Pan
Bass	MS 🕷	->[Default	Synth]: CoyoteWT	None	
Piano	MSW	Show	w Plugin Window		
Drums		Cho	ose Plugin ݤ		

Then, select "<VSTi> JV331 Audio: SynthMaster 2 Player" from the list of plugins and press OK.

	Choose a plugin -		×
<u>F</u> ilte	и	Show	All
<d <v< td=""><td>None X⊳ CoyoteWT ST⊳ [jBridge]Garritan: [jBridge]ARIA Player ST⊳ KV331 Audio: SvnthMaster 2 Player</td><td></td><td></td></v<></d 	None X⊳ CoyoteWT ST⊳ [jBridge]Garritan: [jBridge]ARIA Player ST⊳ KV331 Audio: SvnthMaster 2 Player		
<v.< td=""><td>STi&gt; Plogue Art et Technologie, Inc: sforzando STi&gt; SynthFont: VSTSynthFont64</td><td></td><td></td></v.<>	STi> Plogue Art et Technologie, Inc: sforzando STi> SynthFont: VSTSynthFont64		

You can now choose from many sounds in the SynthMaster Player panel.

<b>~</b>							- 0
Øsynth	IMASte	r player	DRM Grrrroov Selcuk Ergen CPU: 0.6 %	ve Voices: 0	< > UNDO REDO		KV33 audi
BROWSER SHOP							FX SETTINGS
					PRESET Q	前 🗘	
(All)		(All)			2 719 - DR Soca GD		LAYER FX ROUTING
+ Bass		Acid	Aiyn Zahev	Factory Presets	720 - DR Songo GD     1		LAYER 1 LAYER 2
<ul> <li>Bowed Strings</li> </ul>		Ambient	Arksun	My Favourites	2721 - DR Surprise on C1 UK		
Brass	Acoustic	Baroque	BigTone Studios	My Presets	22 - DR Syn Snare		CLIP 🗖 🕟 🗖 🕟
Drums	Additive	Bluegrass	Bluffmunkey		723 - DR TechClapper RL		
Flute	Aftertouch	Blues	Bulent Biyikoglu		24 - DR Techno GD		INSERT 1 Delay Comp
Guitar		Breakbeat	Fragment Audio		725 - DR TomSnareArped RL		INSERT 2 Delay
Mallet Instruments	Amplitude Mod	Chillout	Frank Neumann		226 - DR Train Beat GD		INSERT 3
Multitrack	Analog	Cinematic	Gercek Dorman		2727 - DRM Clap		
Organ	Arpeggiated	Classical	Insigna (i)		228 - DRM Dark Taiko ARK		
Percussion	AudioFX	Country	Kevin Schroeder		2729 - DRM Dub Rhythm		INSERT 5
Piano/Keys	Bright	Dance	Michael Chamerski		2 730 - DRM Forbidden Forest Af	к	
Plucked Strings	Chord	Deep House	Michael Kastrup		2 731 - DRM Grrrroove		LAYER SENDS
Reed Instruments	Clean	Disco	Mr Shoufuku		732 - Digital Toys RL		BUS1 BUS2 DRY
Sound Effects	Dark	DnB	NatLife		233 - Dirty Wave Bass RL		à à á
Soundscapes	Deep	DubStep	Nori Ubukata		234 - Disco Tricky RL		LAYER1
Synth Lead	Digital	Easy Listening	Rob Lee		☆ 735 - Dwarf Bass RL		
Synth Misc	Digital	Electro	Selauk Ergen		☆ 736 - Easy Pad RL		
Synth Pad	Distorted	Electronica	Teoman Pasinlioglu		☆ 737 - Electric Keys RL		
Vocal	Dry	Ethnic	Ufuk Kevser		☆ 738 - Electro Bass RL		
	Electric	Folk	Vandalism				GLOBAL FX ROUTING
	Evolving	Folk	Vorpalsound		☆ 740 - FX 6milion Doller Jump		
	Expansion	Funk	Xenos Soundworks		741 - FX Adriatique UK		INSERT 1
	EM	Future Bass	Yuli Yolo		2 742 - FX Akai Sweep		INSERT 2
	Factory	Future House			743 - EX AlienChat GD		INSERT 3

Some styles use MIDI SuperTracks that automatically play with SynthMaster sounds. They are included in MIDI SuperTracks Set 39. In the StylePicker, you can find them using the [Other] filter button menu item *Specific MIDI SuperTracks Set #*.

Style O	ther 🔻	Sp	ecific MI	DI SuperT	racks Set #							
Category V TimeSig V Feel V Tempo V Type V MST 39 V Clear Filter Refresh 3 items in list. Sorted by Original Order (Low to High)												
Name	Туре	TSig	EvSw	Tempo	Long Name	Genre	Group	Date	Set#	#Instr	#substyles	Other Genres
=PICNIC	RM	4/4	sw 16	75	Picnic Funky Indie Synth Pop	Hip Hop	Pop 43	2022/11	MST 39	8	230	Synth Pop,Pop,Lite Pop
=SUBBY	RM	4/4	ev8	100	Subby Modern Funky Pop	Funk	Pop 45	2022/11	MST 39	5	2	Pop,EDM,Synth Pop
=WITNESS	RM	4/4	ev16	85	Witness Electric Club Beat	Synth Pop	Pop 46	2022/11	MST 39	7	2	Pop,EDM,Modern Pop

When you look at the mixer area in the StylePicker, you can see which tracks use SynthMaster sounds.

Bass MT	Instrument: 81 Square Wave Lead	
Piano MST	4371:Synth, Pad, SynthmasterSlowPad Soft 120 [Blair Masters]	
Drums RD	RealDrums=UrbanPopEv16Climbing^1-Kick,Clap [Ed (Great Oz) Clare]	
Guitar MST	4373:Synth, Arp, SynthmasterUplifting SoftPercArpeggios ev16 095 [Ed (Great Oz) Clare]	
Strings MST	4376:Synth, Pad, SynthmasterDelicateSoundsII 075 [Blair Masters]	

To make a style that plays with SynthMaster sounds, open the StyleMaker and press the [Misc] button followed by [More]. Then, in the More Miscellaneous Style Settings dialog, select the track and MIDI SuperTracks in the "Assign Soloist, RealTracks or MIDI SuperTracks" area.

5
StyleMak

.

Style

Assign Soloist, RealTracks or MIDI SuperTracks							
Track	Piano	[4371 Synth, Pad, SynthmasterSlowPad Soft 120 ] [Panning=-37] [Reverb=55] [Tone=0] [SynthMaster\089 - PD SlowPad F 🗸					
Soloist/RT/MST to use		[0 < no Soloist >] [Panning=0] [Reverb=0] [Tone=0] [SynthMaster\034 - BA ElecBassJazz MK.tgs] [4371 Synth, Pad, SynthmasterSlowPad Soft 120 ] [Panning=-37] [Reverb=55] [Tone=0] [SynthMaster\089 - PD SlowPad FL.tg					
		[0 < no Soloist >] [Panning=0] [Reverb=35] [Tone=0] [4373 Synth, Arp, SynthmasterUplifting SoftPercArpeggios ev16 095 ] [Panning=30] [Reverb=50] [Tone=0] [SynthMaster\089 -					
Note: +6 dB change is abou	Strings	[4376 Synth, Pad, SynthmasterDelicateSounds   075 ] [Panning=42] [Reverb=75] [Tone=0] [SynthMaster\089 - PAD Delicate					

# EZ RealTracks/RealDrums Folder Locations Dialog

When you rebuild a style list, you can confirm and set the correct locations of your RealTracks and RealDrums folders. Previously, setting these folders took time as they were set in different locations and not incorporated into the style rebuild. Now, there is a dialog that shows the current locations (e.g., C:\bb\RealTracks and C:\bb\Drums) and the number of RealTracks and RealDrums present in these locations. This allows you to confirm that you are using the correct locations as you see the expected numbers of RealTracks and RealDrums found in the folders.

The dialog will display in the StylePicker when rebuilding the styles list. It will also show once when you run the program first time after installation or update. Rebuild Rebuild StylePicker and confirm RealTracks and RealDrums folder locations × In the dialog, you can see how many RealTracks and Debuilde at le list realtracke and realdrume. It takes about 20 seconds

rebuilds style list, realifacks and realifialits. It takes about 50 seconds.	RealDrums are found in the selected folder.
First, confirm or select the correct locations of your RealTracks and RealDrums folders	3,463 RealTracks are found in folder: F:\bb\RealTracks\
Custom RealTracks folder (instead of F:\bb\RealTracks\)	3,562 RealDrums (including variations) are found in folder: F:\bb\Drums\
Use a custom folder location for the RealTracks	The dialog is also accessible with the [Set RT/RD Folders]
3,466 RealTracks are found in folder: F:\bb\RealTracks\	button in the Track Settings and Actions dialog (F7).
Custom Drums folder (instead of F:\bb\Drums\ )	Set RT/RD Folders
Use a custom folder location for the RealDrums	
F:\bb2022_FR_Mega_FD\Drums\ Update 闷 🧱	
3,562 RealDrums (including variations) are found in folder: F:\bb\Drums\	
OK- Rebuild Close Cancel	

# "Different Riffs" Setting for Track Re-Generation

The Regeneration window (Alt+F8) and MultiRiff dialog (F8) have settings for "Different Riffs." If the option is set to "Entire riff is different," each generation will be different from previous ones. If it's set to "Start of riffs are different," the first bar of the section generated will be different from previous ones. If it's set to "Allow some duplicate riffs," the generation might be similar to previous ones. For example, when you set it to always different and regenerate a few bars of a sax solo, you should hear different phrases each time.

You can change this setting in the Regeneration window (Alt+F8 - [Options]). You can also set this in the MultiRiff dialog (F8).

n Partial Regenerate	Options	-		$\times$
Allow Lead-in				
 └── Generate an extra be	eat (for Soloists)			
Overwrite (replace) e	existing			
🗹 Auto Play				
Different Riffs	Entire riff is differen	t		~
	Allow some duplicate Start of riffs are diff Entire riff is differen	erent		
Defaults	ОК		Cancel	

# **Editing Functions for RealTracks/RealDrums Tracks**

You can now copy, cut, paste, delete, insert, and do other editing functions to the RealTracks and RealDrums tracks. This allows you to edit the tracks while preserving the ability for the tracks to regenerate new material, and the file size saved is tiny as the track isn't converted to audio.

You can use these functions on the Chord Sheet, Notation window or Audio Edit window.

There are two ways to use the functions. One is to use the new items in the track's right-click menu.

Track Actions	>	Cut Riff
		Copy Riff
		Paste Riff
		Paste Riff - Relative to Copy Point
		Paste N Copies of Riff
		Paste Riff - Merge with Underlying Audio
		Erase Riff (MIDI and RealTracks)

Cut Riff removes a range of riff and copies it to the clipboard.

Copy Riff copies a range of riff to the clipboard.

*Paste Riff* pastes the copied riff to the current location, overwriting the existing riff

*Paste Riff - Relative to Copy Point* pastes the copied riff to the same relative location in the bar as the copied portion. For example, if the copied riff started at beat 2, the relative paste will start at beat 2.

*Paste N Copies of Riff* pastes the copied riff to the current location and repeats the paste by the specified number of times. *Paste Riff - Merge with Underlying Audio* pastes the copied riff to the current location and merges it with the existing riff so you will hear both riffs.

Erase Riff (MIDI and RealTracks) erases a region of RealTracks and related MIDI notation.

Another way is to use the buttons in the **Regenerate window** (Alt+F8). For example, if you like a certain riff and you want it at other location, highlight it on the Audio Edit window.



When you look at the Regenerate window, the range is automatically selected for the highlighted area. Now, press the **[Copy]** button to copy the riff to the clipboard.

Regenerate part of track: Sax: 361:Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 X										
Track s Sax: 361:Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 [ RT ] V Main RealTr										
Alternate RealTrack <none> Alternate RealTrack X</none>										
Bar-based range Update										
Range to regenerate Bar Beat Tick	Сору	Cut	Delete	Insert	Erase					
From 6 1 31 < <<	Paste	Paste Merge	Paste Relative	Paste Multiple	Options					
To 7 3 119 > >>		Redo	Undo	OK - (Re)Generate	Help					

Move the time line to the location you want to paste the copied riff and press the **[Paste]** button. This will paste the riff to the destination.



If you want to paste the riff and merge it with the existing riff at the destination, press the **[Paste Merge]** button instead. If you want to paste the riff to the same relative location in the bar as the copied portion, use the **[P Rel]** button. For example, if the copied range started at beat 2, the relative paste will start at beat 2. The **[PPP]** button lets you select the number of pastes. Hold down the Shift key as you click on this button to make the pastes merge with existing riffs. The **[Paste Merge]** button pastes the copied riff to the current location and merges it with the existing riff so you will hear both riffs.

# **Auto-Save Song**

If you did not close Band-in-a-Box properly in the last session, when you restart it, you will see a message dialog that asks if you want to load the auto-saved song. This prevents losing your work if something crashes on your system.

Load Auto-Save?	×								
Band-in-a-Box might not have shut down properly the last time you used it. Would you like to load the Auto-Saved song?									
Yes	No								

# Stereo VU Meters on the Mixer

In the Mixer window, the VU meters for individual tracks now show panning information.

	Volu	ume Pan
Bass	MS#	= [11] = =44
Piano	MS*	106 36
Drums	MS*	<b>127</b> 63
Guitar	MSM	<b>127</b> –39

# **Audio Input Monitoring**

This is like "Audio Thru" and it routes incoming audio to Audio Out.

To use this feature, you need to arm the track that you are recording to. Right-click on the track button in the Mixer and select the *Arm Track for Audio Input Monitoring* menu item, or right-click on the VU meters and select *Arm Track* from the menu.



The VU meters right-click menu has options to select an audio input. For example, if your audio interface has two inputs (right/left) and you want to record from a microphone plugged into the right input, select the *Mono Right to Stereo* menu item.

When the track is armed, blue borders are drawn around the VU meters. You can now monitor audio input along with the effects that you select on that track. For example, if you want to add a tremolo effect to your recording, right-click on the first slot in the Mixer, select *Choose Plugin* from the menu and select a tremolo effect. Now, when you sing or play an instrument though the microphone, you will see it on the VU meters and you will hear it along with the tremolo effects.

Utility#1 MS 💀 PG Tremolo Non	e None	None

# **RealTracks Picker Enhancements**

The "Stems" column is added to you the number of individual instruments/voices available for the RealTrack.

Name	Туре	Feel	Tempo	Genre	#	N/A	Set	Stereo	C.	Artist	TS	Holds	S	D.	Stems*
Horn Section, Rhythm SlowPopPads Ev16 065	Rhythm	Ev	65	Pop,C	2291		188	St	Ν	Jim Clark	Y	260	s		4
Multi[Thickened=5] Horn Section, Rhythm Slo	Rhythm	Ev	65	Pop,C	3553		188	St	Ν	Jim Clark		260	s		4
Horn Section, Rhythm BluesShuffleChris Sw 130	Rhythm	Sw	130	Blues	3998		384	St	Ν	Chris West			s		4
Vocal Aahs, Background Pop3-part Ev 085	Backgr	Ev	85	Pop,C	3020		278	St	Ν	David Wise an		427n			6
Vocal Oohs, Background Pop3-part Ev 085	Backgr	Ev	85	Pop,C	3027		278	St	Ν	David Wise an		428n			6

There is a new menu item in the [#] filter button to find RealTracks with stems.

Eilter by		RealTracks Stems Avaiable and/or Found		Any
Update #		Video RealTracks Available and/or Found		Stems Available
(21 items) Filter: Stems Found		RealTracks Artist	~	Stems Found

A right-click menu is added with commonly used functions (e.g., clear filter, set or edit favorites, show similar RealTracks, etc.).

Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140	Toggle Favorite for RealTracks:[361 Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 ]	Ν	Jack Stafford
Guitar, Acoustic, Strummi	Select/Edit Favorites & Recent		Tony King
Pedal Steel, Background E	Show only Favorites	Ν	Steve Hinson
Guitar, Acoustic, Fingerpi	Show similar RealTracks to [361 Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 ]	1	Jason Roller
Guitar, Acoustic, Fingerpi	Launch StylePicker showing styles with selected RT: [361 Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 ]		Jason Roller
Bass, Electric, Country Ev			Dow Tomlin
Guitar, Electric, Backgrour	Play Demo <double click=""></double>		Darin Favorite
Guitar, Acoustic, Strummi.	Clear Filter		Jason Roller

You can launch the StylePicker that will show only styles that use the selected RealTracks. You can do this with the *Launch StylePicker showing styles with selected RT* right-click menu item. For example, if you right-click on" Pedal Steel, Background Ev 085" and select this menu item, the StylePicker will open and show you styles that use this RealTracks.

Pedal Steel, Background Ev 085       Toggle Favorite for RealTracks: [363 Pedal Steel, Background Ev 085 ]       363         Guitar, Acoustic, Fingerpicking Ev       Select/Edit Favorites & Recent       364         Guitar, Acoustic, Fingerpicking Ev       Show only Favorites       365         Bass, Electric, Country Ev 065       Show similar RealTracks to [363 Pedal Steel, Background Ev 085 ]       366         Guitar, Acoustic, Strumming Ev 06       Launch StylePicker showing styles with selected RT: [363 Pedal Steel, Background Ev 085 ]       367									4 5 6 7			
Categor	<b>y</b> 🔻	Time	Sig 🔻	Feel	▼ Tempo ▼ Type ▼ RT=363:F	Pedal Steel	•		Clear Filter	Refre	sh	
38 items in list.	Sorted I	oy Orig	inal Ord	er (Low t	o High)							
Name	Туре	TSig	EvSw	Tempo	Long Name	Genre	Group	Date	Set#	#Instr	#substyles	Other Genres
_12STACS	R	4/4	ev16	85	Slow 12-String Acoustic Guitar w/ Band	Country	Country 65	2010/06	RT 98	5	4	Country Ballad, Country Classic, L
_ACCNTRY	R	4/4	ev16	85	Acoustic Country w/ Pedal Steel	Country	Country 55	2011/11	Misc.	5	2	Country Ballad, Country Classic, B
_CBALAD2	R	4/4	ev16	85	Country Ballad w/ Pedal Steel	Country	Country 40	2009/01	RT 22	5	2	Country Ballad, Country Ballad, Fo
_FPBNTPS	R	4/4	ev8	85	Country Ballad w/ Fingerpicking & Pedal Steel	Country	Country 55	2012/11	RT 187	5	2	Country Ballad, Country Ballad, Fo
_HDBEV85	R	4/4	ev8	85	Simple Country w/ Held Bass	Country	Country 45	2015/11	Misc.	5	2	Country Ballad, Country Classic, B
_HSBEV85	R	4/4	ev8	85	Classic Country w/ Simple Held Bass	Country	Country 40	2015/11	RT 234	5	2	Country Classic, Country Ballad, C
LVLNPOP	R	4/4	ev8	85	Country Ballad w/ Backing Violin	Country	Country 40	2015/11	Misc.	5	2	Country Ballad, Country Classic, C
P10NPB2	D	4/4	ev8	85	Country Piano Ballad w/ Pedal Steel	Country	Country 50	2012/06	PT 155	5	2	Country Ballad Country Ballad C

You can set favorites by using the right-click menu or clicking on the [\*] (Set as Favorite) button.

Name		Instrument	Assign to this	s track	
*Gl Select/Edit Favorites Pec Show only Favorites Gui		ta	Bass • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	[RealTracks in Style] 902 Bass,EI,SmoothCool Sw16 75 [RealTracks in Style] 902 Bass,EI,SmoothCool Sw16 75 [Double-Time] [RealTracks in Style] 2165 Piano NewOrlS RD=SmoothCoolBrushes [Double-Time] [RealTracks in Style] 2164 EI.Guit NewOrld	Favs
	le click>	io C	<ul> <li>Strings</li> <li>Melody</li> </ul>	[RealTracks in Style] 2291 Horn Section, SlowPopPads 6 367 Guitar,EI,Bckgrd Dreamy Ev65	5
*Guitar, Acoustic, Strue Pedal Steel, Backgroun	5	Acoustic Guita Pedal Steel			
Pedal Steel, Backgroun	d Hank Sw 120	Pedal Steel			

**Favs** The **[Favs]** button opens the **Choose RealTracks from Favorites and Recently Used** dialog, which shows your favorites followed by recently used RealTracks. The list can be filtered with text string. For example, type "banjo" to find the ones with banjo in the name.

Choose RealTracks from list of Favorites and Recently used	×
Filter String	
676 Guitar, Acoustic, Strumming FolkRockBritEighths Ev 085	^
366 Bass, Electric, Country Ev 065	
362 Guitar, Acoustic, Strumming Ev 085	
366 Guitar, Acoustic, Strumming Ev 065	
361 Sax, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 the list below are recently chosen Tracks	
4227 Multi/Simultaneous=21 Piano, N A Piano,	
372 Guita Acoustic, Strumming Hank Sw 120	
1794 Tuba. DixielandMedium Sw 110 (B: walking')	
1814 Guitar, Acoustic, Fingerpicking CelticAir Ev 085	
1819 Piano, Acoustic, Rhythm SonMontuno Ev 165	
4126 Sax, Tenor, Rhythm ShuffleGroove3High Sw 130	
4378 Organ, Rhythm BackgroundPop Sw 085	
2595 Trumpet, Background CroonerBigBandHigh Sw 110 (1TrackHornSection)	
367 Guitar, Electric, Background Dreamy Ev 065	*
18 items in list	
Edit Favorites DK	Cancel

Pedal Steel

The [Edit Favorites] button in the Choose RealTracks from Favorites and Recently Used dialog opens the Favorite RealTracks Editor that allows you to re-arrange/add/remove your favorites. You can also add comments, which are searchable in the Choose RealTracks from Favorites and Recently Used dialog.

Favorite RealTracks Editor	×
3421 Jaw Harp, Rhythm CelticSlideFastJig68 Sw 140 [Jaw harp is very cool]	To Top
1320 Medley [4 bars] Sax, Trumpet, Trombone, Guit, 1295 Banjo, Rhythm, ModernCountrySync Ev16100 [Twelve 95]	Up
676 Guitar, Acoustic, Strumming FolkRockBritEighths Ev 085	Down
2438 Banjo, Clawhammer, Rhythm HipFolk Sw16 85 [Banjo Man] 803 Guitar, Electric, Rhythm DrivingCountryBalladClean Ev 065 [Guitar 803]	Insert
378 Guitar, Acoustic, Strumming DoubleTime E∨ 088	Append
449 Piano, Acoustic, Rhythm Jazz Sw 140 462 Trumpet Jazz Sw 140	Delete
490 Sax, Alto, Jazz Ballad Sw 085 492 Trombone, Jazz Ballad Sw 085	Becent
528 Guitar, Acoustic, Fingerpicking Hank Sw 120	1100011
554 Piano, Acoustic, Rhythm Jazz Waltz Sw 140 ('B' only) 600 Fiddle, Background Train Ev 130	
599 Mandolin, Rhythm Bluegrass Doc Ev 100	
835 Guitar, Electric, Rhythm AltCountryRootsy Ev 075	
1383 Guitar, Acoustic, Soloist GypsyJazzFastGonzalo Sw 220 [Double-Time]	
Notes:: Guitar 803 OK Close Cancel	Help

Pedal Steel, Background Hank Sw 190

A "Similar" button is added that will show RealTracks similar to the currently selected one. For example, if you have a RealTracks like "Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130" chosen and want to find similar RealTracks, press the Similar button, and you'll see the Find a Sub dialog that lists similar RealTracks.

🌈 RealTracks Picker - Assign RealTracks to Track [F:\l	bb\RealTracks\]		
Assign to this track		_	Find a Sub for the current RealTracks, sorted from best to worst [601: Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130 ]
Strings 601 Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130	Supe		Filter String
O Bass	MIDI		
Piano     Drums     RD=FusionFastAlex^1-Sidestick,Snare	* Favs	-1	883 items <select for="" no="" realtracks="" this="" track=""></select>
O Guitar	Tavs	_	601: Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130 (Wanda Vick)
Guitar     Strings 601 Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130	Simila	2	Best Subs for RT 601: Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130
Strings 001 Hodie, Soloist Hain 24 130			434: Fiddle, Soloist Bluegrass Ev 130 (Andy Leftwich)
			596: Fiddle, Soloist Bluegrass Doc Ev 100 (Andy Leftwich)
O Soloist			624: Fiddle, Soloist George Ev 085 (Wanda Vick)
Disable RealTracks for this track (Force this track to MI	DI)		1351: Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130 [Double-Time] (Wanda Vick)
Jse the RealTracks below for this song only	lone All None		1877: Fiddle, Soloist CountryRob Ev 120 (Rob Hajacos)
		_	1878: Fiddle, Soloist CountryRob Ev 120 (Bluesy) (Rob Hajacos) 1879: Fiddle, Soloist CountryRob Ev 120 [Double-Time] (Rob Hajacos)
Name	Туре	Fe	2008: Fiddle, Soloist CountryWorkinRob Ev120 [Double-Time] (Rob Hajacos)
Fiddle, Background Train Ev 130	Background	Εv	2009: Fiddle, Soloist CountryWorkinRob Ev16 090 (Bluesy) (Rob Hajacos)
Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130	Soloist	Εv	
Harmonica, Soloist Train Ev 130	Soloist	Εv	2029: Fiddle, Soloist CountryAndy Ev 065 (Bluesy) (Andy Leftwich) 2030: Fiddle, Soloist CountryAndy Ev 165 (Andy Leftwich)
Pedal Steel, Background Train Ev 130	Background	Ev	
Guitar, Electric, Chet Comp Ev 130	Rhythm	Ev	2032: Fiddle, Soloist CountryAndy Ev 165 [Double-Time] (Andy Leftwich)
Guitar, Electric, Chet Pickin' Ev 100	Rhythm	-	2549: Fiddle, Soloist CelticReelAndy Ev16 110 (Andy Leftwich)
	,	Ev	
Guitar, Nylon, Chet Fishin' Sw 120	Rhythm	Sv	3835: Fiddle, Soloist Train Ev 130 (8ths@260) [Half-Time] (Wanda Vick)
Guitar, Nylon, Chet Train Ev 130	Rhythm	Ev	3856: Fiddle, Soloist CelticReelAndy Ev16 110 (8ths@220) [Half-Time] (Andy Leftwich

# **RealDrums Picker Enhancements**

RealDrums Picker (Shift Click) R D Enter

A right-click menu is added with commonly used functions (e.g., clear filter, set or edit favorites, show similar or compatible RealDrums, etc.).

*	AmericanaSl 🧹	Toggle Favorite [AmericanaSlow8thsFred]	Fre
*	AmericanaSI		Fre
	AmericanaW	Select/Edit Favorites and Recent	Bry
	BeguineWe	RealDrums that are Favorites	We
	BeguineWe	Set to No RealDrums	We
	Blank	Set to No RealDrums	PG
*	BluesBBEver	Select Similar RealDrums to current selection [AmericanaSlow8thsFred[	PG
	BluesChicage	Show RealDrums compatible with thie style [ JAZFRED.STY]	We
	BluesMonda		PG
	BluesPopBu	Play Demo (dbl click)	Bry
	BluesRock12	Clear Filter	Sha
	BluesRockEv		Sha

You can set favorites by using the right-click menu or clicking on the [\*] column.

	BrushesFolkSwing		Folk	Rock		Sw	8	070	120	x	Vince Ditrich
*	BrushesPop8					-	-		65		Vince Ditrich
	BrushesPop8	Toggle Favorite	[BrushesPo	poths					65		Vince Ditrich
	Cajon128Slov	128Slov Select/Edit Favorites and Recent <sup>VS</sup> 80 x Wes Little									
	CajonFastWa RealDrums that are Favorites 90 Wes Little										
	Coion Collet Ch								10		Marca Little

**Choose from Favorites** The **Choose RealDrums from Favorites and Recently Used** dialog shows favorites followed by recently used RealDrums. The list can be filtered with text string. For example, type "fusion" to find the ones with fusion in the name.

Choose RealDrums from list of Favorites and Recently used	X
Filter String	]
JAZZRIDELEWIS <sup>A</sup> JAZZSWINGDANNYSTICKS JAZZOLDERWALTZ4S <sup>A</sup> JAZZOLDER <sup>A</sup> LAPOPJAZZDANCEEV8 KLEZMERPOIKA <sup>A</sup> KLEZMERPOIKA <sup>A</sup> KLEZMERHORABRUSH34 KLEZMER44 JVESW <sup>A</sup>	^
JVCSVV <sup>®</sup> 	×
153 items in list	Edit Favorites DK Cancel

The [Edit Favorites] button in the Choose RealDrums from Favorites and Recently Used dialog opens the Favorite RealDrums Editor that allows you to re-arrange/add/remove your favorites. You can also add comments, which are searchable in the Choose RealDrums from Favorites and Recently Used dialog.

Favorite Re	alDrums Editor		×
	ANASLOWROCKFRED^	^	То Тор
	3BEVEN8^ BRAZILALEX^ [my favorite]		Up
	BRAZILPERCALEX		Down
	DCK70SSLOW^		
			Insert
GRUNG	SLOWEVDANNY^ E^		Append
	JAZZLATINEV		Delete
	JAZZŚW		Description
	JAZZWALTZSW		Recent
	16THSWESPERCONLY		
	16THSWESPERC <sup>^</sup>		
	16THSWES^		
JAZZ			
JAZZ#1			
	USHESSTICKS	<b>v</b>	
		-	
Notes::	my favorite OK Close Cano	el	Help

Pressing the new **[Similar]** button or choosing *Select Similar RealDrums to current selection* from the right-click menu shows RealDrums that are similar to the currently selected one. For example, if you want RealDrums similar to "Blues Shuffle," highlight the style, press the **[Similar]** button. You will then see a list of other compatible Blues RealDrums, other RealDrums in Pop/Rock 4/4 Swing 8 and tempo 85, and other RealDrums in Pop/Rock 4/4 Swing 8 and tempo 85.

1 8	1 '	1		
Similar		Show Real		
Set to None Choose from Favorites	RealDrums for this song: [from style] BluesShuffle^1-	·HiHatOpen,Ri		
this song only, use this RealDrums style (	(in list below) Simple drums for this song (no fills)	For this sor		
RealDrums Style Name* ^	Genre Genre (m /4 Ev 8 Lo Hi	X NA A		
BluesShuffle^ BodhranCeltic BodhranCeltic BodhranCeltic BodhranCeltic BodhranCeltic BodhranCeltic BodhranCeltic	esShuffle^1-HiHatOpen,Ride] and Recent			
RealDrums Picker (Choose RealDrums for this Filter by		·	Clear Filter Refresh	- X
Similar	Pop/Rock ¥ 4/4 Sw8 70 ¥		Set to RD: Blues Set to Style: ZZJ	
Set to None Choose from Favorites For this song only, use this RealDrums style (i	R BluesMondaySw8^07-StRide, SnRde BluesMondaySw8^08-Cycling BluesRock128^1-SdStk, Snr	4/4 Sw8 4/4 Sw8 4/4 Sw8	55-105 Blues;Rock 55-105 Blues;Rock 50-120 Blues;Rock	PG Artist 4 PG Artist 4 Shannon Forrest
BluesShuffle^ BodhranCelticAir^ BodhranCelticHornpipe^	BluesRock128^2-Sd5t, Mr BluesRock128^2-Sd5t, HiHat BluesRock128^3-Sd5tk, Ride BluesRock128^5-Snr, Ride BluesRock128^5-Snr, Ride BluesRock128^6-HiHat, Ride BluesRock128^6-HiHat, Ride	4/4 5w8 4/4 5w8 4/4 5w8 4/4 5w8 4/4 5w8 4/4 5w8 4/4 5w8	50-120 Blues; Rock 50-120 Blues; Rock 50-120 Blues; Rock 50-120 Blues; Rock 50-120 Blues; Rock 50-120 Blues; Rock 90-140 Blues; Rock	Shannon Forrest Shannon Forrest Shannon Forrest Shannon Forrest Shannon Forrest Fat Steward
BodhranCelticJig^ BodhranCelticReelFast8ths^ * BodhranCelticReel^	G Bongos128 C Bongos5w8 G BrushesEZSwing BrushesEZSwing BrushesEZSwing BrushesEZSwing	4/4 Sw8 4/4 Sw8 4/4 Sw8 4/4 Sw8 4/4 Sw8 4/4 Sw8	35- 80 Folk;Pop 65-220 Folk;Pop 70-120 Rock;Folk 70-120 Rock;Folk 70-120 Folk;Rock	Wes Little Wes Little Vince Ditrich Vince Ditrich Vince Ditrich
BodhranCelticSlipJig^ BodhranCelticSlowJig68^	CajonFolkSlowSwing	4/4 Sw8	70-120 Pop;Folk	Wes Little

There is a new menu item in the [#] filter button to find RealDrums with stems.

<u>F</u> ilter by	$\sim$	Stems Available and/or Found		Any
Update #		Video RealDrums Available and/or Found		Stems Available
Filter:Stems Found;		RealDrums that are Favorites	~	Stems Found

# **Copy Song to Text Enhancements**

The feature that copies the song as a text to clipboard or .txt file has been enhanced with options to:

- Add lyrics as a [Lyrics] section.
- Use Tab delimiter for bars, so the text can be pasted into a spreadsheet with columns for each bar.
- Use a slash for every beat to see  $\mid C \, / \, / \, / \mid$  instead of  $\mid C \mid.$
- Add bar numbers to each bar.

You can launch the **Song(s) to Text** dialog with the menu *Edit* | *Copy Special* | *Copy Song(s) to Text on Clipboard of File(s)*.

Edit	Options	Play	Melody	Soloist	Audio	Harmony	Window	Help	р								
	Undo Set I	RealTra	:k				Ctrl+Z	ms		) 💿 <u>Guita</u>	ŗ	💿 🗿 <u>St</u>	trings				
	Redo					Shift	+Ctrl+Z	<u>b</u>		2	5	10	AT A				
	Cut						Ctrl+X		.wav 🔻	Print	Prefs	Sound v	Plugins 🔻	MIDI			
	Сору						Ctrl+C							_			
	Copy Spec	ial 👘					>		Copy From	m To			Alt	t+C			
	Paste						Ctrl+V		Copy Brea	aks (Rests/SI	nots/Hold	is)		- i			
	Paste Spec	ial - fro	om Clipbo	oard Text t	o Song(s	) Ctrl+	Shift+V		Copy/Mo	ve Tracks							
	Erase Fron	n To					Alt+K		Copy Son	g(s) to Text	on Clipbo	ard or File	(s)				
	Incert Bar(	c)						_					W				
7	Song(s) t	o Text	(clipboa	ard or .tx	t file)										-		×
Ор	tions for W	/ritten	Text														
$\checkmark$	Copy text	to the	clipboar	d with the	e regula	r Edit Copy	(Ctrl-C) o	omma	ind						 		
$\checkmark$	Include so	ng me	tadata			$\mathbf{\nabla}$	☑ Use a % sign for repeated chords bar ☑ Use Tab instead of   for Barline										
$\checkmark$	Include me	emo				$\checkmark$	Add a space character to begin each bar Use / for every empty beat										
$\checkmark$	Include pa	rt mar	kers			$\checkmark$	Start a new line for new section (part marker)										
$\checkmark$	Include ho	lds, pu	ishes, sh	ots (e.g.	^Cm7.	.bd) Ba	rs per line	•		8			🗹 Lyri	ics			

# SongPicker Enhancements

The SongPicker auto-rebuilds for folders if there are less than a specified number of songs. This means that the SongPicker will show all songs including new ones without needing to rebuild. You can set this with the new option in the SongPicker Options dialog.

۶. Song	Action Menu	Choose Options for SongPicker								
Auto-	Auto-rebuild the song list if number of songs is less than									
☑ Include subfolders when building song list										

There is also an option to include/exclude subfolders from the song list.

A message about rebuilding is now a question so that pressing YES saves the extra step of needing to rebuild it.

×

# **Chord Track Added**

Chord track is added, for use with a VST (e.g., arpeggiators want a chord track) or for simple "pad" (held chords) tracks.

A chord track can be generated on any track. Right-click on the track in the Mixer that you want to generate chords to and select Edit MIDI | Generate Chord Track on this track from the menu.

Edit MIDI	Generate ChordTrack on this track
You will then see the	Output Chords to Track dialog
Output Chords to Track: Utility	≠1 × ]
Cha <u>n</u> nel #	9 b
Velocity	90 tl
Note Range to output	66 to 83 (Middle C= 60) b
Root Always on Bottom	C
Chord <u>T</u> ypes	Basic (Triads/7ths) V
# ticks <u>b</u> efore chord change to o	utput (120= 1beat) 0 a
🔲 Output Chords During Lead In	?
Default OK - Write I	Chords Cancel Help

g with options about the chord track to be generated.

These options include channel, velocity, note range, chord types, root at bottom, ticks before the chord change, and chord output during lead in. If the chord types are set to basic chords (triads/7ths), a chord like C13 will be played as a C7, but if they are set to complex chords, a C13 chord will be played as C13. The default setting for "# ticks before chord change to output" is 0, which means chords will be exactly on the downbeat, but if you enter a number other than 0, the chords will start a little bit earlier and may have sufficient time to swell.

For example, if you select the "60-72" note range and "triads and 7ths" chord types, you will see in the Piano Roll window that the chords are generated within the 60-72 (C5-C6) note rage and the simpler chords are written for complex chords.

Chords		- Snap None	Dur 🤳 Chan 🗚	All 🗸 Ghost	View/Edit	Velocity	∼ Pi
8:3:74	C13	D9	Fm9	EMaj13	D	1	Bbdim
D#4	1a		2		3		
C 6							
C 5							

In addition, using the **Output Chords on Channel** dialog (Option | Preferences | [Output Chords]), you can set a chord track to be always written to a certain track (e.g., Utility track #16).



Specific MIDI SuperTracks are added that generate a simple chord track (triads/7ths) or a chord track including 9ths/13ths. Adding these MIDI SuperTracks to your track will write a chord track in the range set, for use with arpeggiators or other VSTs wanting a chord track. With each play a new chord track is written. To do this, open the **Select MIDI SuperTracks** dialog and choose one that has "Arpeggio" in the name.

	Select MIDI SuperTracks	
MIDI Tracks V	Eilter String Arpeggio # Show All	1
THE COLOR	No MIDI SuperTrack chosen 4083: Guitar, Fingerpicking Arpeggios12-8 Sw 060 (Quinn Bachand) 4373: Synth, Arp, SynthmasterUplifting SoftPercArpeggios ev16 095 (Ed (Great Oz) Clare)	

# Fit-to-Note-Range MIDI Transpose Added

This will take any existing MIDI track and transpose the octave of the notes so that they enter the note range specified. For example, if you have a bass MIDI track and the notes are going too low for your MIDI patch, then you can transpose it to the instrument range, and notes will have the octave raised as needed. This function is also available for MIDI SuperTracks.

To transpose an existing track using the MIDI Note Range, right-click on a track button *select Edit MIDI* | *Adjust octave of Notes to fit Note Range* from the menu.

• Strings Edit MIDI Adjust octave of Notes to fit Note Range...

You will be given two dialogs. In the first dialog, enter a note number that will be the lowest of the range and press OK.



In the next dialog, enter a note number that will be the highest of the range and press OK.



Now the track will be transposed for any note that is below or above your range so that it is within the range.

C 6									C 6							
=												_				 
C 5								⇔	C 5							
		_										_	_		_	_
C 4									C 4							

# **Yellow Messages Enhancements**

The notification messages that appear at the bottom right of screen are enhanced. They are smaller, occupying less of the screen.

Master Olla		Orans     Galter	Strings O Melody	• Salaist • Thea	• Audio 🛛	Mixer Plugin	
na e sera na esta esta esta esta esta esta esta est	Open + Contraction Street Auto	- 360 3454 - Nos Nos	Savel • Pagina • HEEL • StyleMaker • 1	Tantar Down Video Help Factors - Bran		Strings D D D W331 Autor :	
	SS Demo - Witness				B Marte O Series	Audio Si obelast Se	INC None None None
The COM style feet	S.STY Witness Electric C res 1 synths, dvided among 2 MDI SuperTr Suiter, Drume-Moter Moter 26				5 - 28 × 3 Shirt End Chanses ev16 4/4 Fm <sup>-13</sup> 100% TAP		90         700
*** ► <b>*</b> ► <b>€</b> <sup>#</sup>	2 -	0 • 0 • ¥ 📰	2 d d O	c' îi 🖪 🖷 🤇	Ped Triedg Key Tenço	Utility#3 DID -spetial Sy	
Tay Cenerata Loop and Ray ¥	Ray from Stop Paules / Racard Ra Ray Continue MODI A	nord Day Conductor Minar Juliaber Window Window	Overi Cananata Sequence Sale Title V	C <sup>7</sup> 11 III Song Cond Options Builder Seetings From B	g_j belish dedy≠	Utilly#4 DBD openator Utilly#5 DBD openator	this frame Rome Rome Rome a
	Andre Andre Durei Stani	Au Drama Mides Box Display		alla Gago MEEL Pages Gryde I	H M S	Utility#6	Chicre Nove Nove o
				an anaganan maga		Haster PS =	ALL SONGS
D*	E≝	2 F	G	A	Obaus/A	A A'	
		•		~		•	
10°		• 6		· 0*		• 6	
0*	E	6	G	A	Obaus/A	4	Δ7
~	C	10 F	9	n <b>n</b>	<i>v</i> .	12 П	n
0"		14 G		15 O"		10 G	
-	<b>C</b> 11		•		Obaus/A		•7
0-	E.	18	6	1º A	Upras/	20 <b>H</b>	H
e	C	0"		e	C	0"	
r	G	22 <b>V</b>		23 F	G	24	29
F	E	26 AM		"F	E	28 A	Obaus
nd .	-	F 11		E 1	-	F- • •	English (Josted States)
0"		30		31			hord Sheet and Notation are now visually

The flash message colors can now be chosen in the Display Options dialog (Options | Preferences | [Display]).



A handy function is added to see the flash message log. Type log Enter, and FlashMessageLog.txt will open.



# Help for "Style Not Found"

If a style is not found when loading it, you will be given an option to open the StylePicker showing compatible styles that you do have. Also, it shows information about the missing style like instrumentation, genre, and audio demo so you get an idea of what replacement you need.

For example, you have a song that needs the style \_OMENS+.STY but you don't have that style. Previously, you would load it, get a message that you don't have it, and it would just get set to a default style. Now, if Band-in-a-Box knows about that style, you will get a message like this:



You get a little more information about the style like the full name "Omens Electro Trip Hop Multi," which helps, and you also can choose "Yes" to launch the StylePicker.

Style Filter by	y:										
Eilter String								Include sim	ilar		
Hip Hop ▼ 4/4 ▼ Ev16 ▼ 70 ▼ Type ▼ Other ▼ Clear Filter Refresh											
83 items in list	. Styles	exactly	matching	g filter, so	rt						
Name	Type	TSig	EvSw	Tempo	Long Name	Genre	Group	Date	Set#	#Instr	#substyle
OMENS+	R	4/4	ev16	70	[N/A] Dmens Electro Trip Hop Multi	Hip Hop	Pop 75	2020/10	MultiStyles1	5	8
_SPI1_IT	R	4/4	ev 16	70	Spit It Trap Beat with Piano	Hip Hop	Pop 75	2019/05	Xtra PAK 7	5	2
_HAZRDUS	R	4/4	ev16	75	Hazardous Electro Doom Hip Hop	Hip Hop	Pop 65	2021/05	XPro1	6	2
_STRUCK	R	4/4	ev16	65	Struck Slow Percussive RnB Beat	R&B	Pop 65	2020/11	Xtra PAK 10	5	2
BLUFIRE	R	4/4	ev16	75	Blue Fire Chillout Pop Ballad	Hip Hop	Pop 60	2017/11	Xtra PAK 4	6	2
CANDLE	R	4/4	ev16	65	Candle Slow Dramatic Cloud Rap	Hip Hop	Pop 62	2017/11	Xtra PAK 4	5	2

The StylePicker shows you a lot of information about the style that you don't have, such as genre (Hip Hop), time signature (4/4), feel (even 16), tempo (70), and the Styles Disk that it comes from (MultiStyles 1).

Double-clicking on the style will play a pre-made demo so you can hear what the style should sound like if you have it.

The StylePicker shows you styles that you do have that would be good substitutes. For example, the first one is "+Spit It Trap Beat with Piano," which is a Hip Hop style with the same tempo, feel and time signature. So, you can try out these other hip hop styles to find the best substitute for the missing style.

If you highlight the missing style "\_OMENS+," you will also see a list of the RealTracks and RealDrums used. This is useful as you may have many of the RealTracks and can use this to add them to the style that you do choose.

Bass RT	2741:Bass, Synth, AltHipHopA-B Ev16 085 [Ed (Great Oz) Clare]	
Piano R.T	1542:Piano, Acoustic, Rhythm PopBelieve Ev16 065 [Blair Masters]	
Drums RD	RealDrums=CloudRap^01-HRKcSnLPr,HHRdCSEch [Ed (Great Oz) Clare]	
Guitar RT	1644:Synth, Rhythm, EuroDance SubduedHitsOffBeat Ev16 120 [Ed (Great Oz) Clare]	
Strings RT	1857:Synth, Rhythm, EuroDance EnergyStabOffBeat Ev16 120 [Ed (Great Oz) Clare]	

# **StylePicker Enhancements**

A style chosen as a prototype always shows in the list, even with a filter applied. For example, if you make \_CHILPOP a protype by right-clicking it and choosing *Mark as Prototype and sort by Similar Styles to* from the menu, then you will see a list of styles compatible with CHILPOP.

Mark as P	rototy	pe, an	d sort by	y Similar	Styles to _CHILPOP.STY: Electro	nic Chillout F	op			
Moderr	n Pop	• 4	/4 ▼	Ev16	75 Type Other	¥		Clear Filter	Refresh	
105 items in li	st. Proto	otype so	ort : _CHI	LPOP.STY	: Electronic Chillout Pop					
Name	Туре	TSig	EvSw	Tempo	Long Name	Genre	Group	Date	Set#	#Instr
_CHILPOP	R	4/4	ev 16	75	Electronic Chillout Pop	Modern Pop	Pop 70	2015/11	Misc.	5
_BUBLPOP	R	4/4	ev 16	90	21st Century Radio	Modern Pop	Pop 80	2015/11	Misc.	4
_HVYDANC	R	4/4	ev 16	90	Modern Pop Ballad	Modern Pop	Pop 75	2015/11	Misc.	5
FEADED	D	A14	0116	95	Feared His Hes Reat with Here	Hin Hon	Dop 80	2017/06	Vtra DAK 2	E

Now, if you type an unusual filter, like "dsfsdfsdf" that no style will contain, you won't lose the prototype style as it will always display.

<u>Filter</u> String	Eilter String dsfsdfsdf											
Moderr	Modern Pop 🔻 4/4 🔻 Ev 16 🔻 75 💌 Type 💌 Other 💌 Clear Filter Refresh											
1 items in list.	items in list. Prototype sort : _CHILPOP.STY: Electronic Chillout Pop											
Name	Туре	TSig	EvSw	Tempo	Long Name	Genre	Group	Date	Set#	#Instr		
_CHILPOP	R	4/4	ev16	75	Electronic Chillout Pop	Modern Pop	Pop 70	2015/11	Misc.	5		

4-bar preview 4-bar preview is now settable to 4, 8, 12, 16, 20, 24, 28 or 32 bars.

Action Set Dialog Options If you want more than 4 bars as a preview, press the [Action] button and select *Set Dialog Options* from the menu. This will open the **StylePicker Options** dialog. With the "# bars for preview" option, select a number of bars. If you select 16, for example, then the checkbox in the StylePicker will show "16 bar preview."



Double-click on a style can be set to play the Chord Sheet chords instead of the pre-made demo. To set this, open the **StylePicker Options** dialog by pressing the **[Action]** button and selecting *Set Dialog Options*, and enable the "Double click on style plays Chord Sheet instead of pre-made demo."

Action Set Dialog Options Double Click on style plays chordsheet chords (instead of pre-made demo)

A progress bar will show at the top of the StylePicker during style rebuild.

👔 [ 30% Complete ] Updating Master styles list for new styles found, please wait (about 30 seconds). Setting style exists.

[ 30% Complete ] Updating Master styles list for new styles found, please wait (about 30 seconds). Setting style exists......

Style rebuild first shows a dialog to confirm RealTracks and RealDrums folder locations.



If a style is not found, the StylePicker will launch and suggest replacement styles. (This is described in the "Help for Style Not Found" section.)

The [Action] button - *Reset Dialog to Default* menu item sets both the StylePicker main screen and the StylePicker Options dialog to defaults.

Action Reset Dialog to Defaults

# **Generate Intros Using Song Chords**

An option is added to incorporate the chords in any section into the intro. For example, you can use the last 4 bars of the song as an intro.

Let's use a demo song for \_CHILPOP.STY, which doesn't have an intro.

	2	3 A <sup>™</sup>	₄ F	5 <b>C</b>	6	G 7 A <sup>rt</sup>	8 <b>F</b>
9a <mark>C</mark>	10 F G	G ₽™ 11 A"	<b>E</b> <sup>M</sup>  12 <b>F</b>	13 <b>C</b>	14 <b>F</b>	G G#15 A"	E <sup>11</sup> 16 F C
176 <b>A</b> <sup>rt</sup>	18 <b>C</b>	19 <b>G</b>	20 <b>D'</b> 1	21 <b>A</b> "	22 <b>C</b>	23 <b>G</b>	24 <b>F</b>

Then, open the Generate Chords for Intro dialog (*Edit* | Song Form | Generate Chords for Intro), and select 4 bars from the bar 21 for the new "Use Chords from Bar" option.

Generate Chords for Intro (or R	lemove Intro)		×
Chord types	Jazz ~	This will create a chord progression that Press the (Re)-Generate button to auto	
Intro Jength (bars)	4 bars (medium tempos) $~\sim~$		-
Starting chord (after intro) is	C in the <u>k</u> ey of C ~	Drums count-in (for this song only)	<default> (Count-In) ~</default>
Pedal bass	<no bass="" pedal=""> ~</no>	Instruments	All Instruments ~
🗹 Use Maj7 instead of Maj6		_	
Use Chords from Bar	21 # of bars 4		
		Remove Intro Chords (Re)-Generate In	ntro Chords Close Help

Now, when you press the [(Re)-Generate Intro Chord] button, you will get an intro that uses the last 4 bars, which works well.

<sup>4</sup> / <sub>4</sub> A <sup>™</sup>	2 <b>C</b>	з 🖌	4 <b>F</b>					
5a 🗘	6 <b>G</b>	7 <b>A</b> ™	8 <b>F</b>	9 <b>C</b>	10	G 11 A <sup>nt</sup>	12 <b>F</b>	
13a 🖒	14 F G (	3≠™15 <b>A</b> <sup>M</sup>	<b>E</b> <sup>™</sup> 16 <b>F</b>	17 <b>C</b>	18 <b>F</b>	G G#** 19 A*1	E" 20 F (	2
21b <mark>A</mark> <sup>м</sup>	22 <b>C</b>	23 <b>G</b>	24 <b>D</b> <sup>*1</sup>	25 <b>A</b> M	26 <b>C</b>	27 <b>G</b>	28 <b>F</b>	2).

# More Track's Right-Click Menu Items

Menu items are added to the track's right-click menu.

- Track Actions | Auto... (Re-Regenerate Parts of RealTracks) (Ctrl+F8)
- Track Actions | Regenerate Window (Al+F8)
- Track Actions | Cut Riff
- Track Actions | Copy Riff
- Track Actions | Paste Riff
- Track Actions | Paste Riff Relative to Copy Point
- Track Actions | Paste N copies of Riff
- Track Actions | Paste Riff Merge with underlying audio
- Track Actions | Erase Riff (Track and RealTracks)
- Track Actions | Copy/Move Tracks

- Edit MIDI | Adjust Octave of Notes to Fit Note Range
- Edit MIDI | Generate Chord Track on This Track
- (Drums track) Find a Drums Sub for Style

Track Actions >	(re)Generate this RealTrack [361:Sax, Tenor, Jazz S	w 140
	(Re)Generate Part of RealTracks (MultiRiff)	F8
	Auto (Re)Generate Part of RealTracks	Ctrl+F8
	Regenerate Window	Alt+F8
	Revert Track to Style Instrument	
	Cut Riff	
	Copy Riff	
	Paste Riff	
	Paste Riff - Relative to Copy Point	
	Paste N Copies of Riff	
	Paste Riff - Merge with Underlying Audio	
	Erase Riff (MIDI and RealTracks)	
	Erase Track	
	Unassign Stem	
	Copy/Move Tracks	

Edit MIDI	>	Event List Editor	
		Quantize, Time Adjust	>
		Transpose	>
		Form	>
		Adjust Velocity of Notes	
		Adjust Octave of Notes to Fit Note Range	
		Generate Chord Track on This Track	

# **Track Settings and Action Dialog Enhancements**

The dialog that opens with the **T Enter** keys has a new button for various MIDI editing commands like transpose, generate chord track, transpose octave to note range, etc.

Edit MID	Event List Editor	
·	Quantize, Time Adjust	
	Transpose	•
	Form	,
	Adjust Velocity of Notes	
	Adjust octave of Notes to fit Note Range	
	Generate ChordTrack on this track	

**Copy/Move** There is also a new button to copy/move tracks.

# Summary Section in "What Add-ons do I have?" Dialog

The dialog that opens with the *Help* | *What add-ons do I have?* menu item or the StylePicker's [Add-ons] button lists the percentage (%) of RealTracks, RealDrums, Styles and add-on styles with links to pgmusic.com with more information.

		ks. This fu	nction analyzes your current installation an	d disp	lays information about which styles disks and	^
oloist disks have be						~
Fhese add-o IealTracks Sets	ns have been found : (found)		RealDrums (found)		MIDI SuperTracks Sets (found)	
I - RealTracks 1 2- Country Ballad 3- Swingin' Country 4- Modern Country 5- Rockin' Guitar 5- All Metall 7- Jazz Bass & Bor		^ ~ v	PeaDrums sets in F\bb\Drums\: 1-Rock and Jazz 2-Waltes: Country, and More 3-Fusion, Hip-Hop, and More 4-Dop, Rock, and More 4-Dop, Rock, and More 5-Nashville Classic 7-Nashville Classic MIDI Styles Sets (found)	<	MIDI SuperTracks in F\bb\Soloist\: 1. Pop Pano and More! 2. All Jazz 3. Steet South Penno 4. Falls: Pop A Netw Age 6. Jaz Pinno Old and New 7. Smoth Jazz & Funk Pienno MIDI Soloist Sets (found)	
<pre> ktra Styles PAK 2,   ktra Styles PAK 3,   ktra Styles PAK 4, </pre>	Aug. 2016, 160 Styles, Songwrite Dec. 2016, 160 Styles, Bluegras June 2017, 160 Styles, Americar Nov. 2017, 150 Styles, Folk 1, R Julu 2018, 160 styles, MIDI 1, Br	s/Wo ia 1, F ock 4	MIDI Styles Disks : #0 Built-in ZZ' Styles #1 (various) #3 (various) #3 (various)	* *	MIDI Soloist Disk Sets : 1 (Basic) 2 (Killer Jazz) 3 (Specialty Jazz) 4 (Bock)	*
Fhese add-o lealTracks Sets	ns are not found		RealDrums (NOT found)		MIDI SuperTracks Sets (NOT found)	
RealTracks sets in	FYbbVRealTracks\ : PealTracks. (unless we've mad	le	RealDrums sets in F:\bb\Drums\ : You have all of the RealDrums. (unless we've made some new ones)	^	MIDI SuperTracks in FNbb/Soloists : You have all of the MIDI SuperTracks Sets. (unless we've made some new ones)	
Optional) Xtra S	tyles Sets and more- (NOT	found)	MIDI Styles Sets (NOT found)	Ŷ	MIDI Soloist Sets (NOT found)	
KPro Styles PAK 4		^	You have all of the MIDI Style disks (unless we've made some new ones).	^	You have all of the MIDI Soloist disks (unless we've made some new ones).	: /
		~		$\vee$		1
Summary of Add	-ons: Recommended Upgra	des and	Add-ons			
ealTracks:	100% of available RealTrack	s are foun	d.		UltraPak info/download	
tras Styles:	100% of Xtra Style sets are fo	ound. To c	heck for latest Xtra sets>		XtraStyles info/download	
Pro Styles:	75% of XPro Style sets are fo	und. To g	et 100%, get the newest sets>		XProStyles info/download	
	r!	Check now	v for latest new products			
			www.pamusic.com/addons.htm		OK Cancel Held	á.

For example, on this installation you can see that:

- 100% of RealTracks and RealDrums are found
- 100% of Xtra Styles Sets are found
- 75% of XPro Styles Sets are found

RealTracks:         100% of available RealTracks are found.           Xtras Styles:         100% of Xtra Style sets are found. To check for latest Xtra sets>	UltraPak info/download XtraStyles info/download
Xtras Styles: 100% of Xtra Style sets are found. To check for latest Xtra sets>	XtraStules info/download
	r tado gios initor doriniloda
XPro Styles: 75% of XPro Style sets are found. To get 100%, get the newest sets>	XProStyles info/download

In addition, there are buttons to launch pgmusic.com site with pages of more information and download information.

# Pre-made "Showcase" Audio Demos for Playable RealTracks and RealDrums

These show how the Playable sound (MIDI.sfz) compares to the audio RealTracks and RealDrums, by playing 4 bars of Playable sound, then 4 bars of Playable sound with a band, then 4 bars of RealTracks with a band.

Press the **[PT]** button in the **Notation** window and choose the *Select a new Playable SFZ Sound* menu item, or right-click on the track button and go to *Select MIDI Instrument (Patch)* | *Select Hi-Q MIDI Patch Plugin.* 

# PT Select a new Playable SFZ Sound

# Select MIDI Instrument (Patch) Select Hi-Q MIDI Patch Plugin []

Now double-click or press the green PLAY button to hear a demo. The demos of the Playable RealTracks allow you to compare the original RealTracks (real musicians and instruments) with the MIDI sound playing the same part, by playing 4 bars of Playable sound, then 4 bars of Playable sound with a band, then 4 bars of RealTracks with a band.

0	hoose from List				-	-	×
<u>F</u> ilter		Show <u>A</u> ll	Mer	mo			
Playa Playa	ale RealTracks\012 - Vibraphone, Pop Ballad [SN0699].tgs ble RealTracks\012 - Accustion, Zydeco [SN0824].tgs ble RealTracks\022 - Accustion, Zydeco [SN0824].tgs ble RealTracks\022 - Harmonica, Blues [SN0759].tgs ble RealTracks\022 - Harmonica, Fiery Rock [SN0459] [D].tgs ble RealTracks\023 - Harmonica, Fiery Rock [SN0459] [D].tgs ble RealTracks\023 - Harmonica, Fiery Rock [SN0459] [D].tgs ble RealTracks\023 - Harmonica, Gritty Blues [SN0822] [D].tgs ble RealTracks\023 - Harmonica, Gritty Blues [SN0858].tgs ble RealTracks\023 - Jaw Harp, Celtic Folk [SN0558].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Beginte [SN0568].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Beginte [SN0862].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Peru Festejo [SN0382].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Smooth Folk [SN0471].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Songwirler [SN0587].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Songwirler [SN0587].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Songwirler [SN0827].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Guitar, Nylon, Songwirler [SN0587].tgs ble RealTracks\025 - Suitar, Nylon, Songwirler [SN0587].tg	^					
	ole RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, 60's Coffeehouse [SN0643].tgs ole RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, 90's Rock [SN0652].tgs						
Playa Playa Playa Playa Playa Playa Playa Playa Playa	ple RealTracks/\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, 90's Rock Ballad [Sh\0551].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Bright Indie Folk Fingerpicking [SN0641].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Bright Pop [SN0452].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Bright Songwiter Fingerpicking [SN0870].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Bright Songwiter Fingerpicking [SN0870].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Camptire [SN0450].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Indie Folk [SN0650].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Indie Folk [SN0650].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Indie Folk [SN0650].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Indie Folk [SN0710].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Natural Pop Folk [SN0421].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Stack Key [SN0570].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Stack Key [SN0570].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Stack Key [SN0588].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Stack Key [SN0588].tgs ble RealTracks\026 - Guitar, Acoustic, Stack Key [SN0588].tgs	~		Sho	w Folder		\$ 
801 it	ms in list			<u>0</u> K	<u>C</u> a	ancel	

# **Playable Tracks Enhancement**

You can now easily increase/decrease volume of the playable MIDI sounds.

PT Pressing the [PT] (Playable Track) button in the Notation widow and choosing the menu item *Set MIDI Volume and Velocity of Playable Sound* opens the dialog with an additional setting for the MIDI Velocity. The MIDI Volume setting is 0-90, so if it is 90, you can't make it higher, but the MIDI Velocity can be set separately and you can make that louder or softer.

n Set MIDI Volume (0-90)	of playable s	ound and Velocit	y (0-127)	—		×
MIDI Volume (0-90)	90	Affects the overa	Il loudness of	the sou	nd	
MIDI Velocity (0-127)	90	Affects the loudn	ess of each M	IDI note	1	
	_					
		ОК	Cancel		Help	

# Chord display for Nashville Notation and Roman Numerals now shows minor keys as 1m

For example, Am in the key of Am would be 1m. This is settable if you prefer 6m using the **Display Options** dialog.

	4/4	Am	140 \$100%
4		1 <sup>m</sup>	

# Display Option of Red Lines in Bars on Chord Sheet

There is an option to hide the red lines in bars that have changes. This can be done per song or global setting. You can toggle the setting back on when you want to see them again, but it gives the Chord Sheet a cleaner look when you are just playing songs.

<u>9</u>A

You can control if you see these red lines on songs with bar changes. Use the "Red Line on Chord Sheet" option in the Edit Settings for Current Bar dialog (F5).

IF5E	Red Line on chordshe	et	٦
Bar	Auto 🗸	🗹 All	-
Securiys	Auto	-	
	No Yes		У
	100		6

The "All" checkbox applies to all songs and it's enabled by default.

The "Auto/No/Yes" dropdown applies to the current song only and overrides the global setting. If you select "No" when "All" is checked, you won't see the red lines in the current song. If you select "Yes" when "All" is unchecked, you will see the red lines in the current song. If "Auto" is selected, the global setting will apply to the current song.

# **Notation Enhancements**

The Notation window (Editable or Staff Roll mode) has hotkeys for changing note times left/right. When a note is highlighted in red (using the **Shift+Arrow R/L** keys), use the **Ctrl+Alt+Arrow R/L** keys to change the note time +/- 5 ticks (120 ticks per beat).

**Note**: Some graphics drivers may use the Ctrl+Alt+Arrow R/L keys to rotate the screen in 90 degrees right/left. If that's the case, you need to disable it in order to use those keys for changing note times in the Notation window. You can do this in your graphics control panel, which opens by clicking on the desktop and selecting Graphics Properties.

Rests now transpose from treble to bass. For example, in this image the Melody track contains some rests on the treble clef.



If you visually transpose the song, the rests will display on the bass clef.



You can now highlight an area of non-editable notation.



The Lead Sheet can set the number of staves to one per page in Options.



There is a new notation setting for note colors: black (a chord tone), green (not a chord tone) and orange (not a chord tone and not a scale tone).



# **Notation Printing Enhancements**

There is a new *File* menu item *Print Song (Chords/Melody) in Lead Sheet Mode* that prints the song using the Lead Sheet options (such as fake sheet). The hotkey is **Ctrl+Shift+P**. This is in addition to *File* | *Print Song (Chords/Melody) (***Ctrl+P**) that prints using the Notation window options.

File	Print Song (Chords/Melody)	Ctrl+P
	Print Song (Chords/Melody) in Lead Sheet Mode	Ctrl+Shift+P

When you do not include staff lines in printout, there is an option to show chords above instead of inside each bar. This is set with the "Regular chord position when no staff lines" option.

🗹 Regular chord	position when no	staff lines		
BbMA57	Gm7	C <sup>4</sup>	F <sup>19</sup>	
,°4 4				

Regular chord	position when no	staff lines		
4 Bb Mas7	Gm <sup>7</sup>	C 4	F <sup>15</sup>	

Band-in-a-Box remembers all items in the Print Options dialog when returning to it and after reboot.

The Print Options dialog has hotkeys for [OK - Preview/Graphics] and others.

Print Range remembers last settings and uses that as default.

# **XML Enhancement**

Importing a MusicXML file to Utility tracks is enhanced, so tracks don't default to all going on the Melody track.

Load XML File	$\times$
Select tracks to load (and right-click on a track to change settings)	
Source Track: 0: Piccolo> Destination Track: 31 (Utility#1)	~
Source Track: 1: Flutes> Destination Track: 32 (Utility#2)	
Source Track: 2: Oboes> Destination Track: 33 (Utility#3)	
Source Track: 3: English Horn> Destination Track: 34 (Utility #4)	
Source Track: 4: Clarinets in Bb> Destination Track: 35 (Utility#5)	
Source Track: 5: Bass Clarinet in Bb> Destination Track: 36 (Utility #6)	
Source Track: 6: Bassoons> Destination Track: 37 (Utility #7)	
Source Track: 7: 1 2> Destination Track: 38 (Utility#8)	
Source Track: 8: 3 4> Destination Track: 39 (Utility #9)	
Source Track: 9: Trumpets in C> Destination Track: 40 (Utility#10)	
Source Track: 10: 1 2> Destination Track: 41 (Utility#11)	
Source Track: 11: 3> Destination Track: 42 (Utility #12)	
Source Track: 12: Tuba> Destination Track: 43 (Utility#13)	
Source Track: 13: Timpani> Destination Track: 44 (Utility #14)	
Source Track: 14: 1> Destination Track: 45 (Utility #15)	~

# **New Hotkeys**

Ctrl+A selects all in the various windows like Chord Sheet, Notation, Audio Edit and Piano Roll.

Alt+Shift+Z solos the current track on the Mixer.

L O G Enter opens the FlashMessageLog.txt.

(Audio Edit window) Ctrl+Shift+V mix-pastes audio.

(Audio Edit window) Shift+Delete deletes a region of audio.

(Piano Roll window) + (plus) increases velocities of the selected notes by 1.

(Piano Roll window) Shift++ (plus) increases velocities of the selected notes by 5.

(Piano Roll window) - (minus) decreases velocities of the selected notes by 1.

(Piano Roll window) Shift+- (minus) decreases velocities of the selected notes by 5.

(Piano Roll window) ~ (tilde) randomizes velocities of the selected notes (-1 to +1).

(Piano Roll window) Shift+~ (tilde) randomizes velocities of the elected notes (-5 to +5).

# Miscellaneous

Search-and-Replace chords now sets to the selected area.

Songs loaded that previously had audio but no longer have audio files will remove the audio settings (tempo, transpose) from the track.

You can now drop VST plugins (.dll files) onto the plugin selector dialog to add them to the Band-in-a-Box plugin lists.

A song setting to allow chord variations in repeated sections is added.

The DAW button turns red to clearly indicate the DAW plugin mode is currently on.

The "Select Hi-Q MIDI Patch Plugin" menu item always shows in the track button menu.

MIDI tracks that use their own MIDI plugin display VU meters based on audio output rather than estimated MIDI events. The color selection combo box in the Display Options dialog is now bigger.

In the Piano Roll window, drawing in velocity area only affects selected notes if applicable.

Increase/decrease note velocity adjusting features are added to the Piano Roll window. These can be accessed from the rightclick menu or hotkeys.

# **Many Accessibility Enhancements**

See the list at https://www.pgmusic.com/bbwin.new.accessibility.htm

# **Feature Browser**

The Feature Browser (accessed from the / Enter keys) is updated to include the latest 2023 features.

There is a new button to filter the list to show the latest 2023 features. You can add keywords to find new features for topics of interest.

Feature Browser - Select a Feature (for Information and to use it) X				
Eilter String 2023			Partial Track Re-Generation	
37 items in list	Clear	New for 2023	you can re-generate sections of RealTracks by simply highlighting the section and pressing the A Ctrl+F8 keys. This generates a different part each time, so you can keep regenerating to find	
Partial Track Re-Generation Undo Available for Song Generation and Ti Playable RealDrums Playable MIDI Tracks and MIDI SuperTrac Master Volume Automation RealTracks Stems SynthMaster Player Synth Included RealTracks/RealDrums Folder Locations "Different Riffs" Setting for Track Re-Gene Erase Range of RealTracks Auto-Save Song Stereo VU Meters on the Mixer Audio Input Monitoring RealTracks Picker Enhancements Toolbar	ks	Ŷ	the best replacement. You can also re-generate using different RealTracks than the original. Normally, you would choose to replace the existing path but you can also set this to merge so you will hear both pats. This also works with different RealTracks than the original on the same use to both pats. This also works with different RealTracks than the original on the same use the resonance of the ere-generation Window with settings (Alt+F8), which allows use the resonance of the ere-generation with the theory of the ere-generation Regenerate part of track: Strings: 361:Sas, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 Track s Strings: 361:Sas, Tenor, Jazz Sw 140 Bet base range Bet base range Update Thoms 1 Undo QK-Redenerate	
HotKey Dtrl+F8 Main Menu Other Launch Right-click menu on Regenerate Part of I		i - Track Actions - Auto		
		Refresh	Do It Close	

Thank you for taking time to read this introduction to Band-in-a-Box 2023!

# **PG Music Inc.**

# **Band-in-a-Box**<sup>®</sup>

is protected by copyright and is the property of PG Music Inc. and its licensors. Copyright © 1989-2023 PG Music Inc. All rights reserved.

# **PG MUSIC INC.**

29 Cadillac Avenue Victoria, BC V8Z 1T3 Canada

# Sales:

E-mail: info@pgmusic.com

Phone: Toll-free in USA & Canada: 1-800-268-6272 or 1-888-PG-MUSIC (746-8742)

**Phone:** Toll-free outside USA & Canada where International Freephone service is available: + 800-4PGMUSIC (800-4746-8742)

or 1-250-475-2874 (tolls apply)

Fax: Toll-free in USA & Canada: 1-877-475-1444 or 1-250-475-2937 (tolls apply)

# **Technical Support:**

E-mail: <a href="mailto:support@pgmusic.com">support@pgmusic.com</a>

Live Internet Chat: www.pgmusic.com

Be sure to visit the FAQ pages at www.pgmusic.com for information about known troubleshooting issues as well as the latest technical support bulletins.